
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 2, 2015  Page 1 of 4 
 

   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

MEETING OF THE  
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
 

3rd FLOOR – CONFERENCE ROOM 
 

THURSDAY, JULY 2, 2015 
 

4:00 P.M. 
 

 WORKSHOP AGENDA 
 
 

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the meeting posted for Thursday, 
July 2, 2015. 
 

2. Discuss the City’s strategic plan, to include the FY 2015-2016 budget process to include the 
various strategic and budget related policy issues to include, but not limited to, receiving an 
overview briefing of the FY2016 Preliminary Budget. 
 

3. Discuss potential updates to Code of Ordinances, Chapter 16, regarding managed native 
landscape areas. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 2, 2015  Page 2 of 4 
 

 
5:00 P.M. 

 
MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 
2 NORTH MAIN STREET 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2ND FLOOR 
TEMPLE, TX 

 
TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

1. Invocation  
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
II.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this meeting.  
Public comments will be received during this portion of the meeting.  Please limit comments to 3 
minutes.  No discussion or final action will be taken by the City Council.  
 
III. PROCLAMATIONS & SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS 
 
3. Recognize July as National Parks and Recreation Month. 
 
IV. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City Council 
and may be enacted by one motion.  If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be removed 
from the Consent Agenda at the request of any Councilmember and will be considered separately. 
 
4. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda items and the appropriate 
 resolutions for each of the following: 
  
 Minutes 
 
 (A) June 18, 2015 Special Called & Regular Meeting 

 
Contracts, Leases, & Bids 
 
(B) 2015-7729-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a contract with Kasberg, 
 Patrick & Associates, LP, for professional services, in the amount of $54,750, required 
 for a pedestrian sidewalk project along North 31st Street. 
 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 2, 2015  Page 3 of 4 
 

 
(C) 2015-7730-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing change order #1 to the 
 construction contract with M&C Fonseca Construction Company, Inc. (M&C), of Granite 
 Shoals, for construction of a new 12” diameter water line along Lamar Street from 7th 
 Street to the corridor between 15th and 17th Streets in an amount not to exceed 
 $59,207.32, as well as declare an official intent to reimburse the expenditures with the 
 issuance of 2015 Utility Revenue Bonds. 
 
(D) 2015-7731-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an interlocal agreement 
 between the  City of Temple and the Bell County Communications Center regarding the 
 parties’ respective responsibilities related to collecting, entering and maintaining data in 
 the Texas Crime Information Center (TCIC) and National Crime Information Center 
 (NCIC). 
 
(E) 2015-7732-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 
 agreement with Lockwood, Andrews, & Newnam, Inc., in an amount not to exceed 
 $169,500, for right-of-way services for the expansion of Old Waco Road (Outer Loop, 
 Phase 3B) from the channel to south of Jupiter Road. 
 
ORDINANCES – SECOND & FINAL READING 
 
(F) 2015-4717: SECOND & FINAL READING – Z-FY-15-17: Consider adopting an ordinance 
 authorizing a rezoning of approximately 224.549 acres located north of West Adams 
 Avenue and on the east and west sides of Westfield Boulevard from Agricultural District, 
 Light industrial District and General Retail District to Planned Development-General Retail 
 District with a Conditional Use Permit  for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premise 
 consumption, Planned Development-Single Family Dwelling 3 District, and Planned 
 Development-Single Family Attached Dwelling 3 District. 
 
(G) 2015-4718: SECOND & FINAL READING – Z-FY-15-19: Consider adopting an ordinance 
 authorizing a Conditional Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premise 
 consumption for properties located at 7373 and 7349 Honeysuckle Drive, 7348 West 
 Adams Avenue and 7410 West Adams Avenue. 
 
(H) 2015-4719: SECOND & FINAL READING – Z-FY-15-18: Consider adopting an 
 ordinance amending Ordinance No. 2014-4689, and the corresponding site plan, to add 
 a proposed apartment complex project in the Shoppes on the Hill Subdivision located at 
 2510 South 31st Street.  
 
Misc. 
 
(I) 2015-7733-R: Consider adopting a resolution setting the date, time and place of public 

hearings on the proposed FY 2015-2016 Budget for August 6, 2015 and August 27, 2015 
at 5:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers. 

 
(J) 2015-7734-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal 

year 2014-2015. 
 
 
V. REGULAR AGENDA 
 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 2, 2015  Page 4 of 4 
 

 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
5. 2015-7735-R: P-FY-15-22: Consider adopting a resolution on the Westfield Master 
 Preliminary Plat, an approximately  224.54 acre tract, situated in the Baldwin Robertson Survey, 
 Abstract No. 17 and in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, both in Bell County, Texas, 
 located on the north of West Adams Avenue, east side of North Pea Ridge Road, and south of 
 Prairie View Road with an exception to Unified Development Code (UDC) Section 8.3: Park Land 
 Dedication. 
 
6. 2015-7736-R: Consider adopting a resolution waiving distance requirements identified in 
 Section 5.3.15 of the Unified Development Code between establishments with alcoholic 
 beverage sales for on premise consumption and places of worship, public parks and residentially 
 zoned or developed lots on PD-GR zoned lots located north of West Adams Avenue and on the 
 east and west sides of Westfield Boulevard and part of the Westfield Master Preliminary Plat. 
 
ORDINANCES – FIRST READING / PUBLIC HEARING 
 
7. 2015-4720: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-15-20:  Consider adopting an 
 ordinance to rezone property located at 7425 West Adams Avenue from Neighborhood Service 
 District (NS) to Planned Development-Neighborhood Service District (PD-NS) with a 
 development plan to allow drive-in restaurants, and a Conditional Use Permit for the sale of 
 alcoholic beverages for on-premise consumption in establishments where between 50% and 
 75% of the total gross revenue may be from the sale of alcoholic beverages.   
 
 

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any items in executive (closed) session whenever permitted by the 
Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 
I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 
10:15 AM, on Friday, June 26, 2015. 
 

 
_________________________ 
City Secretary, TRMC 
City of Temple 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

   

07/02/15 
Item #4(A) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary   
  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Approve Minutes: 
 

(A) June 18, 2015 Special Called & Regular Meeting 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve minutes as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Copies of minutes are enclosed for Council review. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
June 18, 2015 Special Called & Regular Meeting (To Be Provided) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



   

 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
07/02/15 

Item #4(B) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a contract with Kasberg, Patrick & 
Associates, LP, for professional services, in the amount of $54,750, required for a pedestrian sidewalk 
project along North 31st Street. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:   The proposed sidewalk and enhancement project along North 31st Street will 
provide needed connectivity and safety for pedestrians traveling between the HOP bus shelter, Temple 
High School, area businesses, proposed I-35 pedestrian facilities and downtown Temple. The scope 
of the project would provide a new 8‐foot sidewalk and enhancements on the west side of the street, 
while also providing needed connections to existing sections of 5‐foot sidewalk along the east side of 
the street in front of Temple High School.  The proposed project would also provide needed safety 
elements for pedestrians including cross-walks and pedestrian warning flashers to improve driver 
awareness and visibility of pedestrian traffic.   A Project Map is attached for reference. The services 
authorized under this resolution would design, bid, inspect, and administer construction of the proposed 
pedestrian improvements. 
 
The engineer’s preliminary opinion of probable cost is $308,990. A proposal is attached listing the 
following professional fees: 
 
  Basic Services 
   Final Design     $14,500.00 
   Design Surveys      $6,000.00 
   Bidding       $5,500.00 
   Construction Administration    $6,750.00 
  
   Subtotal     $32,750.00 

 
   



   
  

07/02/15 
Item #4(B) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
  Special Services 
   Easement Documents (6 Parcels)    $7,200.00 
   Environmental Clearances     $8,000.00 
   On-Site Representation     $6,800.00     

   Subtotal     $22,000.00 

   Total Project    $54,750.00 

 
The proposed timeline for design is 90 calendar days. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The City will receive $234,064 in grant funds, through a reimbursement program, 
with a required match, $156,304. Total project cost is $390,368.A portion of the match for construction 
is being contributed by Keep Temple Beautiful, Temple Independent School District (TISD), and the 
Reinvestment Zone, with each entity contributing $30,774 as financial partners for a total of $92,322. 
The remaining amount of the required match of $63,982 is being funded from the General Fund’s 
Unallocated Fund Balance.  A budget adjustment is presented for Council’s approval appropriating 
grant revenue, contributions from others, the City’s contribution and project expenditures.  
 
Funding in the amount of $54,750 will be available in account 260-3400-531-6315, project #101440, to 
fund an engineering contract with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP upon approval of the budget 
adjustment. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Project Map 
Engineer’s Proposal 
Budget Adjustment 
Resolution 
 

 
 

 

 



PROPOSED 8' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 5' SIDEWALK

EXISTING 5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED I-35 IMPROVEMENTS
(BY OTHERS)

EXISTING PAVING

HOP BUS SHELTER

G

ADAMS AVE.

JACK WHITE

CALHOUN AVE.

BARTON AVE.

31
S

T
 S

T
.

H
S

T
.

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP
CONSULTING ENGINEERS

TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501
Firm Registration No. F-510

NORTH 31ST STREET SIDEWALK
IMPROVEMENTS

EXHIBIT A

©
20

14
K

as
be

rg
, P

at
ric

k 
&

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s,

 L
P

 K
P

A
 F

irm
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n 

N
um

be
r 

F
-5

10
F

IL
E

:
P

:\T
em

pl
e\

20
14

\2
01

4 
N

31
st

 s
id

ew
al

k 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
\C

A
D

\E
xh

ib
it\

n3
1s

t s
id

ew
al

k 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 -

 0
8f

t e
xh

ib
it 

A
.d

w
g

L
A

S
T

 S
A

V
E

D
:

3/
25

/2
01

5 
2:

13
:3

5 
P

M
L

A
Y

O
U

T
:

ad
am

s 
av

e 
to

 ja
ck

 w
hi

te

0

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

100 200

N
O
R
T
H

FLASHING PEDESTRIAN
CROSSING

PEDESTRIAN CROSSING
SIGN

BENCH & TRASH CAN

HOP BUS SHELTER

LEGEND

NEW 6'' SHADE TREE















FY 2015
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER PROJECT # DECREASE

260-3400-531-63-15 101440

260-0000-490-25-88

260-0000-461-08-41

260-0000-445-19-95

260-0000-431-02-61

110-9100-591-8160

110-0000-352-13-45 63,982        

TOTAL………………………………………………………………………………………… 63,982$      

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? x Yes No

DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? x Yes No

Approved

Disapproved

Approved

Disapproved

Approved

DisapprovedCity Manager

Department Head/Division Director

Finance

Date

Date

Date

63,982         Transfer Out - Grant Fund

Designated Cap Proj - Unallocated

INCREASE

234,064      

390,368$    

63,982         

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

State Grants / State Grants

Cap. Bldg & Grounds/Sidewalks/N 31st St Sidewalks

Transfer In - Engineering & Admin Fees

Other / - Grant Match -KTB & TISD 61,548         

Other / Reinvestment Zone Grant Match 30,774         

844,718$    

To appropriate funding for the TAP Grant, donations from Keep Temple Beautiful, and TISD, and City match. Total project cost is 
$390,368.  The City will receive $234,064 in grant funds with a required match of $156,304. A portion of the match for construction is being 
donated by Keep Temple Beautiful, TISD, and the RZ--each entity committing $30,774 for a total of $92,322.   The remaining local 
contribution from the City in the amount of $63,982 is being funded from the General Fund Unallocated Fund Balance

7/2/2015

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased account 
are available.

Do Not Post

Revised form - 10/27/06



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.      
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $54,750, FOR SERVICES RELATED TO THE 
PEDESTRIAN SIDEWALK PROJECT ALONG NORTH 31ST STREET; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the proposed sidewalk and enhancement project along North 31st Street will 
provide needed connectivity and safety for pedestrians traveling between the HOP bus shelter, 
Temple High School, area businesses, proposed I-35 pedestrian facilities and downtown Temple; 
 
 Whereas, this project will provide a new 8‐foot sidewalk and enhancements on the west 
side of the street, while also providing needed connections to existing sections of 5‐foot sidewalk 
along the east side of the street in front of Temple High School; 
 
 Whereas, the project will also provide needed safety elements for pedestrians including 
crosswalks and pedestrian warning flashers to improve driver awareness and visibility of 
pedestrian traffic; 
 
 Whereas, the City will receive $234,064 in grant funds, through a reimbursement 
program, with a required City match of $156,304 - a portion of the match for the construction is 
being contributed by Keep Temple Beautiful, Temple Independent School District and the 
Reinvestment Zone, with each entity contributing $30,774 as financial partners; 
 
 Whereas, the remaining amount of the required match of $63,982 will be funded from 
the General Fund’s Unallocated Fund Balance, but an amendment to the fiscal year 2015 budget 
needs to be approved to transfer the funds to Account No. 260-3400-531-6315, Project No. 
101440; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, of Temple, Texas, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, in the amount of $54,750, for services related to the 
pedestrian sidewalk project along North 31st Street. 

 
Part 2: The City Council authorizes an amendment to the fiscal year 2015 budget, 

substantially in the form of the copy attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A.’ 



2 
 

 
 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of July, 2015. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



   

  

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM   

 

07/02/15 
Item #4(C) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer  
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing change order #1 to the construction 
contract with M&C Fonseca Construction Company, Inc. (M&C), of Granite Shoals, for construction of 
a new 12” diameter water line along Lamar Street from 7th Street to the corridor between 15th and 17th 
Streets in an amount not to exceed $59,207.32, as well as declare an official intent to reimburse the 
expenditures with the issuance of 2015 Utility Revenue Bonds. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  On February 6, 2014, Council authorized a professional services agreement with 
Bury-AUS (Bury) for design, bidding, and construction administration services of 2,100 linear feet of 
12-inch water line and 300 linear feet of sewer line in an amount not to exceed $43,370. On August 21, 
Council authorized a construction contract with M&C Fonseca Construction Co., Inc. for construction in 
an amount not to exceed $431,922.50.  
 
The attached change order includes several additions due to varying existing field conditions. Existing 
utilities not shown on the construction documents were located causing the need for extra pipe and 
appurtenances to make proper connections and maintain TCEQ compliance. The change order also 
includes deletions for items not used for the project. 
 
Per attached letter, Bury recommends approving the change order. Staff also recommends approving 
the change order. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Council authorized this project as part of the Capital Improvement Plan in the FY 
2015 Budget. This change order will be funded with the proposed 2015 Utility Revenue Bonds. Funding 
in the amount of $59,207.32 will be made available in account 561-5200-535-6949, project 101082, to 
fund this construction change order with M&C Fonseca Construction Co., Inc. 
 
 



   
07/02/15 

Item #4(C) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Map 
Engineer’s Letter 
Resolution 
 

  



!!2

!!2

!!2!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

! (

! (

! (

! (! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (! (

! (
! (

! (

! (

! (! (! (

! (

! (

! (! (

! (! ( ! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (! (

! (! (! (

! (

UT

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.G!.

) ))))

2"

4"

6"

8"

2"
8"

6"

6"

2"

6"

6"

2"

6"

6"
2"

2"

6"

8"
8"

6"

8"

6"

6"

6"

6"

8"

King

5t
h

7t
h

9t
h

Lamar
11

th

13
th

Nugent

15
th

MunroeMunroe

15
th

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP,
swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

0 200 400100

Feet

CITY OF TEMPLE
LAMAR STREET 
WATERLINE REPLACEMENT

±

221 West Sixth Street, Suite 600
Austin, Texas 78701
(512) 328-0011, Phone

TBPE #F-1048
Copyright    2013

www.buryinc.com
©

Date:
File:
Scale:
Tech:
Project Number: 

GA
1 inch = 200 feet

January 22, 2014
EXH01.mxd

WATERLINE REPLACEMENT

G!. FIRE HYDRANT

UT ELEVATED TANK

! ( VALVE

!!2 MANHOLE

SEWER LINE

RESIDENTIAL WATER LINES

TRANSMISSION WATER MAIN

50' SEWER REPLACEMENT











1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.      
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $54,750, FOR SERVICES RELATED TO THE 
PEDESTRIAN SIDEWALK PROJECT ALONG NORTH 31ST STREET; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the proposed sidewalk and enhancement project along North 31st Street will 
provide needed connectivity and safety for pedestrians traveling between the HOP bus shelter, 
Temple High School, area businesses, proposed I-35 pedestrian facilities and downtown Temple; 
 
 Whereas, this project will provide a new 8‐foot sidewalk and enhancements on the west 
side of the street, while also providing needed connections to existing sections of 5‐foot sidewalk 
along the east side of the street in front of Temple High School; 
 
 Whereas, the project will also provide needed safety elements for pedestrians including 
crosswalks and pedestrian warning flashers to improve driver awareness and visibility of 
pedestrian traffic; 
 
 Whereas, the City will receive $234,064 in grant funds, through a reimbursement 
program, with a required City match of $156,304 - a portion of the match for the construction is 
being contributed by Keep Temple Beautiful, Temple Independent School District and the 
Reinvestment Zone, with each entity contributing $30,774 as financial partners; 
 
 Whereas, the remaining amount of the required match of $63,982 will be funded from 
the General Fund’s Unallocated Fund Balance, but an amendment to the fiscal year 2015 budget 
needs to be approved to transfer the funds to Account No. 260-3400-531-6315, Project No. 
101440; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, of Temple, Texas, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, in the amount of $54,750, for services related to the 
pedestrian sidewalk project along North 31st Street. 

 
Part 2: The City Council authorizes an amendment to the fiscal year 2015 budget, 

substantially in the form of the copy attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A.’ 



2 
 

 
 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of July, 2015. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



   

 

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM   

 

07/02/15 
Item #4(D) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1  

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Jim Tobin, Deputy Chief 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an interlocal agreement between the 
City of Temple and the Bell County Communications Center regarding the parties’ respective 
responsibilities related to collecting, entering and maintaining data in the Texas Crime Information 
Center (TCIC) and National Crime Information Center (NCIC). 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Texas Crime Information Center (TCIC) and Texas Law Enforcement 
Telecommunications System (TLETS) provide the Temple Police Department with immediate access, 
24 hours a day, 7 days a week, to information regarding whether an individual has been reported as 
missing, wanted, a sex-offender or a person who is the subject of a protective order. TCIC also provides 
a direct link to the National Crime Information Center (NCIC) so that Temple officers know instantly 
whether a vehicle, a boat, or other property under investigation is stolen, or a person in question is 
wanted anywhere in the country. 
 
The proposed agreement with Bell County Communications Center (BCCC) addresses BCCC and the 
City’s responsibilities related to collecting, entering and maintaining data in the TCIC and NCIC. BCCC 
will be responsible for entering Police Department data into the TCIC and NCIC. The Police Department 
must maintain accurate records of the data entered by BCCC and notify BCCC of any changes in the 
information, including the need for cancellation, addition, deletion or modification of the information.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No fiscal impact 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 

  



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.      
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE AND THE BELL COUNTY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER 
REGARDING THE PARTIES’ RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES 
RELATED TO COLLECTING, ENTERING AND MAINTAINING DATA 
IN THE TEXAS CRIME INFORMATION CENTER AND NATIONAL 
CRIME INFORMATION CENTER; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, Texas Crime Information Center (TCIC) and Texas Law Enforcement 
Telecommunications System (TLETS) provide the Temple Police Department information 
regarding whether an individual has been reported as missing, wanted, a sex-offender or a 
person who is the subject of a protective order with immediate access, 24 hours a day, 7 days 
a week; 
 

Whereas, TCIC also provides a direct link to the National Crime Information Center 
(NCIC) so that Temple officers know instantly whether a vehicle, a boat, or other property 
under investigation is stolen, or a person in question is wanted anywhere in the country; 
 

Whereas, the agreement with Bell County Communications Center (BCCC) 
addresses BCCC and the City of Temple’s responsibilities related to collecting, entering and 
maintaining data in the TCIC and NCIC - BCCC will be responsible for entering Police 
Department data into the TCIC and NCIC; 
 

Whereas, the Temple Police Department must maintain accurate records of the data 
entered by BCCC and notify BCCC of any changes to the information, including the need for 
cancellation, addition, deletion or modification of information; 
 
 Whereas, staff recommends entering into an agreement with Bell County 
Communications Center regarding the parties’ respective responsibilities related to 
collecting, entering and maintaining data in the Texas Crime Information Center (TCIC) and 
National Crime Information Center (NCIC); and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute an 
agreement between the City of Temple and the Bell County Communications Center 
regarding the parties’ respective responsibilities related to collecting, entering and 
maintaining data in the Texas Crime Information Center (TCIC) and National Crime 
Information Center (NCIC). 

 
Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of July, 2015. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



   

 

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM   

 

07/02/15 
Item #4(E) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Bill D’Amico, ROW Project Coordinator 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Lockwood, Andrews, & Newnam, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $169,500, for right-of-way 
services for the expansion of Old Waco Road (Outer Loop, Phase 3B) from the channel to south of 
Jupiter Road. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The expansion of Old Waco Road from West Adams Avenue to the channel is 
currently under construction. Expansion of Old Waco Road from the channel to south of Jupiter Road 
is in the design phase. Construction of the project is tentatively scheduled for Fiscal Year 2016. At this 
time, Staff anticipates that right-of-way will be needed from 12 separate tracts of land. Staff has received 
a proposal for the provision of right-of-way services from Lockwood, Andrews, & Newnam, Inc. (“LAN”).  
 
LAN will offer multiple services during the right-of-way process, including, but not limited to, project 
management, acquisition, title, relocation, and appraisal services.  
 
Staff recommends Council authorize a professional services agreement with LAN, in an amount not to 
exceed $169,500, for right-of-way services for the expansion of Old Waco Road from the channel to 
south of Jupiter Road.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Currently, funding is available in account #365-3400-531-6813, project #101121, to 
fund the professional services agreement with Lockwood, Andrews & Newnam, Inc. for right-of-way 
services in an amount not to exceed $169,500. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution 

 

 



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.      
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH LOCKWOOD, ANDREWS & NEWNAM, INC., IN AN AMOUNT NOT 
TO EXCEED $169,500, FOR RIGHT-OF-WAY SERVICES FOR THE 
EXPANSION OF OLD WACO ROAD (OUTER LOOP, PHASE 3B) FROM 
THOMPSON DRAINAGE CHANNEL TO SOUTH OF JUPITER DRIVE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the expansion of Old Waco Road from West Adams Avenue to the channel is 
currently under construction; 
 
 Whereas, expansion of Old Waco Road from the channel to south of Jupiter Drive is in 
the design phase with the construction tentatively scheduled for Fiscal Year 2016; 
 
 Whereas, staff anticipates that right-of-way will be needed from 12 separate tracts of 
land - staff has received a proposal for the provision of right-of-way services from Lockwood, 
Andrews, & Newnam, Inc. (“LAN”) in an amount not to exceed $169,500;  
 
 Whereas, LAN will offer multiple services during the right-of-way process, including, 
but not limited to, project management, acquisition, title, relocation, and appraisal services;  
 
 Whereas, staff recommends Council authorize a professional services agreement with 
LAN, in an amount not to exceed $169,500, for right-of-way services for the expansion of Old 
Waco Road from the channel to south of Jupiter Drive.  
 
 Whereas, funding is available in Account No. 365-3400-531-6813, Project No. 101121, 
to fund the professional services agreement with Lockwood, Andrews & Newnam, Inc. for right-
of-way services; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
professional services agreement with Lockwood, Andrews, & Newnam, Inc., after approval as to 
form by the City Attorney, in an amount not to exceed $169,500, for right-of-way services for 
the expansion of Old Waco Road (Outer Loop, Phase 3B) from the channel to south of Jupiter 
Drive. 
 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of July, 2015. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



   

 

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

 
07/02/15 

Item #4(F)  
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 7 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW  
Brian Chandler Planning Director,  
Beverly Zendt Assistant Planning Director   
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  SECOND & FINAL READING – Z-FY-15-17: Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing a rezoning of approximately 224.549 acres located north of West Adams Avenue and on 
the east and west sides of Westfield Boulevard from Agricultural District, Light Industrial District and 
General Retail District to Planned Development-General Retail District with a Conditional Use Permit  
for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premise consumption, Planned Development-Single Family 
Dwelling 3 District, and Planned Development-Single Family Attached Dwelling 3 District. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its May 18, 2015 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 8 to 0 to recommend approval of the requested rezoning from 
AG, LI, and GR to PD-GR, PD-SF-3; and PD-SFA-3. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the following uses, conditions, and 
exceptions within each proposed planned development district: 
 
PD-GR:  

1. Approval of a Conditional Use Permit for alcoholic beverage sales where the sale of all alcoholic 
beverages for on premise consumption may be: 

 75% or more of the total revenue; or 
 >50% & < 75%. 

2. Allowance of the following uses by right within the PD-GR district: 
 All uses identified in Sec. 5.1 Use Table that are permitted in the General Retail District 

(GR) 
 Theatre or playhouse (open or drive in) (UDC Section 5.1 waived) 
 Vertical Mixed Use allowing for multifamily elements and general retail elements to be 

combined in a single multi-story building (UDC Section 5.1 waived) 
 Multiple Family Dwelling -3 (UDC Section 5.1 waived) 

3. Elimination of the requirements identified in UDC Section 5.6.2 relating to the operation of a 
Farmers Market. (UDC Section 5.6.2 waived) 

4. Provision of a continuous buffer, along the common boundary between nonresidential or 
multiple-family uses and an agricultural or residential district only (buffering from uses is 
waived) in accordance with the following table - eliminating the required continuous buffering 
along the common boundary between nonresidential or multiple-family uses and agricultural or  



   
 

07/02/15 
Item #4(F)  

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 7 

 
 
residential uses. (UDC Section 7.7.4 location waived above and design waived in lieu of 
table below). 

 
 
Additionally the applicant has requested that the City Council allow for a variance to the 
prohibition of the sale of alcoholic beverages within 300’ of a church and within 300’ of a park 
or residentially zoned or developed lot (UDC Section 5.3.15).  This item will be considered by 
City Council as a separate resolution per Section 109.33: Sales Near School, Church, or Hospital 
of Title 4 of the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code. Distance requirements from schools and 
hospitals will still be applicable.  
 
PD-GR1:  
All the uses, conditions and exceptions approved for PD-GR District with the addition of the following 
use to be allowed by right in the PD-GR1 district: 
 

1. Mini-Storage Warehouse subject to the standards identified in Section 5.3.8 of the Unified 
Development Code. (UDC Section 5.1 waived) 

 
PD-SF-3:  

1. The following changes to the residential dimensional standards for the district identified in UDC 
Section 4.5.1 for Single Family Detached Dwellings in a SF-3 district. 

a. Elimination of the maximum building coverage standards for the rear half of the lot. 
b. Reduction in the minimum side corner yard standard from 15’ to 10’  

2. Provision of the following minimum landscaping for single family residential units: 
 

a. Fully sodded lots – exclusive of driveways, walks, patios, swimming pools, and 
landscaped beds;  

b. 3 shrubs planted in accordance with Section 7.4.5C; and 
c. One large canopy tree 



   
07/02/15 

Item #4(F)  
Consent Agenda 

Page 3 of 7 
 
PD-SFA-3: 

1. The following changes to the residential dimensional standards for the district identified in UDC 
Section 4.5.1 for Single Family Detached Dwellings in a SFA-3 district: 

 Reduction in the minimum lot area from 2,300 SF to 2,000 SF. 
 Reduction in the minimum lot depth from 100’ to 90’. 
 Elimination of the maximum building coverage standards for the rear half of the lot 
 An increase in the maximum building height from 2.5 stories to 3 stories  
 Reduction in the minimum side corner yard standard from 15’ to 10’  

2. The following changes to the residential dimensional standards for the district identified in UDC 
Section 4.5.2 for Single Family Attached Dwellings in a SFA-3 district: 

 Reduction in the minimum lot area from 2,300 SF to 2,000 SF. 
 Reduction in the minimum lot depth from 100’ to 90’. 
 Elimination of the maximum building coverage standards for the rear half of the lot 
 An increase in the maximum building height from 2.5 stories to 3 stories  
 Reduction in the minimum side corner yard standard from 15’ to 10’  

3. The following changes to the residential dimensional standards for the district identified in UDC 
Section 4.5.3 for Patio Homes in a SFA-3 district: 

 Reduction in the minimum lot area from 2,300 SF to 2,000 SF. 
 Elimination of the maximum building coverage standards for the rear half of the lot 
 An increase in the maximum building height from 2.5 stories to 3 stories  
 Reduction in the minimum side corner yard standard from 15’ to 10’  

4. Provision of the following minimum landscaping for single family residential units within the 
district: 

 Fully sodded lots – exclusive of driveways, walks, patios, swimming pools, and 
landscaped beds;  

 3 shrubs planted in accordance with Section 7.4.5C; and 
 One large canopy tree. 

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Synopsis. 
Approval of this item will result in the rezoning of 224 acres of land into a multi-district planned 
development allowing for retail, commercial (mini-storage), single-family detached and attached 
housing, restaurants, multifamily housing and mixed-use components. 
 
Background. 
The applicant is seeking a rezoning of +/- 224 acres. The applicant is proposing a design concept that 
will involve the integration of a mix of zonings and uses to create a unique planned community where 
residents can live, shop and play accessing amenities and shopping by means of a connected 
trail/sidewalk system. The applicant is proposing to introduce multiple elements into a large multi-zoned 
planned development. The proposed development will include: 
 

1. Professional and retail shops; 
2. Live/work mixed use dwelling/retail units;  
3. Mix of residential development integrating single family detached, attached, and multi-family 

uses into a single planned community; and 
4. Trails, open space and pocket parks dispersed throughout the development.  

 



   
 

07/02/15 
Item #4(F)  

Consent Agenda 
Page 4 of 7 

 
The applicant has requested numerous changes to conventional zoning to achieve this unique design 
more completely summarized in the staff recommendation. These changes include: 
 

1. Additional uses integrated into the conventional General Retail District – such as vertical mixed 
use, multifamily uses, outdoor theatre, mini-storage warehouses, and restaurants and bars. 

2. Changes to dimensional standards related to Single Family Detached Dwelling-3 (SFA-3) Single 
Family Dwelling-3 (SF-3) districts calling for the following:  

 Reduction in the minimum lot area;  
 Reduction in the minimum lot depth; 
 Elimination of the maximum building coverage standards for the rear half of the lot; 
 Increase in the maximum building height; and   
 Reduction in the minimum side corner yard standard.  

 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT REVIEW CRITERIA 
The Unified Development Code states, that when considering a Planned Development, the approving 
body should consider the following: 
 

1. Conformance to the Design and Development Standards Manual; 
2. Environmental impact of the development to the site and surrounding neighborhood; 
3. Compatibility with the use, character and design of the surrounding neighborhood; 
4. Provision of safe and effective vehicular and pedestrian circulation; 
5. Safety and convenience of off street parking and loading facilities; 
6. Compliance of streets with city codes and the Thoroughfare Plan; 
7. Provision of landscaping that provides adequate buffers and complements the design and 

location of buildings; 
8. Design of open space ensuring that such design is suitable for recreation and conservation uses; 
9. Provision of adequate utilities, drainage, and refuse disposal. 

 
The subject property will address planned development review criteria in the following ways:  
 

1. The Planned Development rezoning is being considered in tandem with a master preliminary 
plat. Proposed streets and utility infrastructure will be constructed in conformance with the 
Design and Development Standards Manual. The applicant has requested no exceptions to 
street or utility provision standards.  

2. The applicant is proposing a mixed-use higher density development project designed to provide 
opportunities for residents to access amenities and entertainment opportunities close to where 
they live – conceptually eliminating the number of automobile trips to destination points around 
the city. Drainage and other environmental impacts will be reviewed as part of the platting 
process and the applicant will be required to address any concerns related to the impact of the 
project to the surrounding properties.   

3. This development area is characterized by the placement of similar uses on adjacent properties. 
The immediate area provides a mix of uses to include residential (varying densities), retail, 
office, public institutional (schools) and recreational uses. The applicant is proposing similar 
uses with the introduction of only a few (limited) new elements – attached dwellings and vertical 
mixed use – although multi-family uses are present on adjacent properties.  



   
07/02/15 

Item #4(F)  
Consent Agenda 

Page 5 of 7 
 

4. The applicant is proposing an interconnected network of trails and sidewalks that will allow safe 
pedestrian passage between retail, residential and recreational uses to include the future 250 
acre city park, Crossroads Community Park, to the northeast of the proposed development.  

5. Parking and circulation for emergency vehicle response access has been addressed in the 
preliminary master plat and will be further reviewed in the final platting process. Parking and 
loading concerns will be addressed with the building permits and related site plans. 

6. All proposed streets will be constructed in compliance city codes and reflect consistency with 
proposed alignments and classifications identified in the City Thoroughfare Plan.  

7. The proposed Planned Development integrates open space with retail and residential of varying 
intensities. The applicant is proposing to exceed both the residential landscaping standards and 
the residential/non-residential buffering standards to ensure appropriate transitions and 
adequate open space. 

8. The applicant is providing trails and sidewalks to ensure pedestrian access to pocket parks, 
green spaces and the proposed 250 acre Crossroads Community Park. 

9. The subject site is served by multiple water and sewer lines. The proposed utility layout has 
been reviewed as part of the preliminary platting process and the final platting process. 

 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the property, 
Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 

 
Direction 

 
FLUP 

 
Zoning

 
Current Land Use 

Subject 
Property  

Suburban Residential; 
Suburban Commercial; 
Business Park  

AG; LI; GR Undeveloped 

North  Agricultural/Rural   AG; O-2; SF-3 Undeveloped, Residential  
South  Public Institutional; 

Suburban Commercial; 
Auto- Urban Residential 

GR; SF-2; MF-2; AG Office, Multi-family, Retail  

East  Parks/Open Space; 
Business Park; Suburban 
Residential; Suburban 
Commercial   

LI; AG Residential; Future 
Community Park    

West  Suburban Residential; 
Suburban Commercial   

SF-2; AG Undeveloped; School  

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map 
 

Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Partial 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance Yes 
CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 



   
07/02/15 

Item #4(F)  
Consent Agenda 

Page 6 of 7 
 
Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
Due to the size of the tract, the subject property falls within multiple future land use character areas to 
include: Suburban Residential, Suburban Commercial, and Business Park. Suburban Residential 
is the dominant future land use identified for this site. The Choices ’08 City of Temple Comprehensive 
Plan states that the Suburban Residential character district is suited for mid-sized single family lots, 
allowing for greater separation between dwellings and more emphasis on green spaces versus streets 
and driveways. The lot size may be reduced in developments that make corresponding increases in 
open space on the site to maintain the suburban character. The predominant density proposed by the 
developer is the most dense single family detached lot size identified in the Unified Development Code. 
Other housing types proposed include attached housing and patio homes consistent with the SF-3 and 
SFA-3 zoning district.  Additionally, the applicant has asked for several adjustments in the dimensional 
standards for both districts. Although this intensity is greater than what is prescribed for this character 
area, the unique design elements combined with pocket parks, an integrated trail system and proposed 
connections to the anticipated 250 acre Crossroad Community park (northeast of the development) 
provide an opportunity to create a unique walkable setting where residents can enjoy opportunities to 
live, shop and play in one integrated community. While not completely compliant with the Future Land 
Use Map this use is compatible with surrounding similar uses. Staff recommends amending the Future 
land Use Map to accommodate this unique development opportunity. The areas identified as Suburban 
Commercial and Business Park are compatible with the proposed rezoning which calls for retail and 
light industrial/retail uses in those respective areas.  
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) and Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalk Ordinance 
The subject property is bounded by the following streets: N. Pea Ridge Rd, Prairie View Rd,   
Stonehollow Dr; Westfield Blvd; and Hilliard Rd. The following roads have been identified in the Future 
Thoroughfare Plan Map and have been identified on the corresponding plat where additional right-of 
way has been requested where needed.  
 

 Stonehollow Drive- Proposed Collector 
 N. Pea Ridge Road- Proposed Collector 
 Prairie View Road-Proposed Minor Arterial 
 Westfield Blvd- Proposed Minor Arterial  

 
A Local Connector has been identified along Stonehollow Drive and a Community-Wide Connector has 
been identified along Westfield Boulevard. Both trail segments have been identified on the 
corresponding plat.  A note has been provided on the plat indicating that sidewalks will be placed on 
Stonehollow Drive, N. Pea Ridge Road, Prairie View Road, and Westfield Blvd. A minimum 4’ sidewalk 
is required on collector roads and a 6’ sidewalk is required along arterials.  
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sanitary sewer is available to the subject property through multiple existing 8” sewer lines provided 
along Stonehollow Drive, Prairie Lark Drive and along the south property boundary. Multiple water lines 
are available on the north, south, east and west boundaries.    
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: The development site plan will provide the development and 
dimensional standards for this development. Except where otherwise provided, the dimensional 
standards identified for the base zoning district apply. 



   
07/02/15 

Item #4(F)  
Consent Agenda 

Page 7 of 7 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: 41 notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent out to 
property owners within 200’ of the subject property as required by State law and City Ordinance.  As of 
Wednesday, May 13, 2015, 20 notices have been returned in favor of the proposed rezoning and 3 
notices have been returned in opposition to the proposed rezoning. The newspaper printed notice of 
the public hearing on May 7, 2015, in accordance with state law and local ordinance. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Zoning & Location Map 
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Development Site Plan  
Westfield Master Preliminary Plat  
Future Land Use and Character Map    
Localized area of the Thoroughfare & Trails Plan (combined) 
Utility Map 
Notification Map 
Zoning Summary Table  
Returned Property Owner Notices 
Ordinance  
  



Z-FY-15-17
Westfield Planned 
Development 

AG

LI

SF-2

SF-1

SF-2

GR

SF-2

SF-3

SF-3

MF-2

MF-2

SF-3

SF-1

GR

O-2

GR

SF-3

GR

AG

H
IL

L
IA

R
D

 R
D

N
 P

E
A

 R
ID

G
E

 R
D

PRAIRIE VIEW RD

HONEYSUCKLE

W ADAMS AVE

W
E

S
T

F
IE

L
D

 B
L

V
D

REDBRUSH

HAWTHORN

AIRPORT RD

RESEARCH LOOP

FA
W

N
 L

IL
Y

 D
R

FIELDSTONE DR

B
R

O
O

K
S

 D
R

L
IG

H
T

N
E

R
 L

N

P
A

R
K

F
IE

L
D

 L
N

STONEHOLLOW DR

G
A

R
D

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 D

R

N
 C

A
R

D
IN

A
L

 R
D

HILLIARD RD

Z-FY-15-17 Zoning and Location Map Location: Mutliple Tracts Bordering:
N. Pea Ridge Rd; Priairie View Rd; 

Stonehollow Dr; Westfield Blvd; and Hilliard Rd. 

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

μ
Zoning Case



Subject Property: Location: M
utliple

Tracts Bordering:
N

. Pea Ridge Rd; Prairie View
 Rd; 

Stonehollow
D

r; W
estfield Blvd; and H

illiard Rd. 



Property to the N
orth 

Property to the South 

Property to the South 



Property to the W
est 

Property to the East 







Westfield Planned 
Development 

Suburban Residential

Business Park

Suburban Residential

Suburban Residential

Agricultural/Rural

Suburban Residential

Parks & Open Space
Suburban Commercial

Agricultural/Rural

Suburban Commercial

Business Park

Suburban Residential

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

H
IL

L
IA

R
D

 R
D

PRAIRIE VIEW RD

W ADAMS AVE

N
 P

E
A

 R
ID

G
E

 R
D

AIRPORT RD

HONEYSUCKLE

FA
W

N
 L

IL
Y

 D
R

W
E

S
T

F
IE

L
D

 B
L

V
D

ALASKA AVE

ALABAMA AVE

REDBRUSH

HAWTHORN

B
R

O
O

K
S

 D
R

R
E

S
E

A
R

C
H

 L
O

O
P

FIELDSTONE DR

L
IG

H
T

N
E

R
 L

N

D
A

F
F

O
D

IL
 D

R

BRIDGEPOINTE DRGEORGIA AVE

K
A

S
B

E
R

G
 D

R

S
 M

O
N

T
P

A
R

K
 R

D

WOODBURY DR

C
O

Z
Y

 C
R

E
E

K
 D

R

OPEN PRAIRIE DR

N
 C

A
R

D
IN

A
L

 R
D

HILLIARD RD

Z-FY-15-17 Future Land Use Map 
Location: Mutliple Tracts Bordering:
N. Pea Ridge Rd; Priairie View Rd; 

Stonehollow Dr; Westfield Blvd; and 
Hilliard Rd. 

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

μ



\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\

\
\
\
\
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\

\
\
\
\

\\\\\\\
\

\\

\

\
\

\
\

\

\

\
\\\\

\

\

\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\

\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\

\

\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\

\\\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\

\\

\
\
\

\
\
\

\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\

\

\\\\\\\\\\
\
\\

\
\
\

\\\\\\\\\\\

Westfield Planned 
Development 

C
W

_S
pi

ne

ComW_Conn

Loc_Conn

Com
W

_Conn

CW_Spine

ComW_Conn

ComW_Conn
C

om
W

_C
on

n

C
om

W
_C

on
n

Loc_Conn
HILLIARD RD

PRAIRIE VIEW RD
N

 P
E

A
 R

ID
G

E
 R

D

AIRPORT RD

W ADAMS AVE

HONEYSUCKLE

W
E

S
T

F
IE

L
D

 B
L

V
D

FA
W

N
 L

IL
Y

 D
R

ALASKA AVE

ALABAMA AVE

REDBRUSH

HAWTHORN

FIELDSTONE DR

L
IG

H
T

N
E

R
 L

N

E
M

E
R

A
L

D
 G

A
T

E
 D

R

D
A

F
F

O
D

IL
 D

R

B
R

O
O

K
S

 D
R

BRIDGEPOINTE DR

WOODBURY DR

STONEHOLLOW DR

NORTHGATE LOOP

G
A

R
D

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 D

R

HILLIARD RD

Z-FY-15-17 Trails Master Plan 
And Thoroughfare Plan 

Location: Mutliple Tracts Bordering:
N. Pea Ridge Rd; Priairie View Rd; 

Stonehollow Dr; Westfield Blvd; and Hilliard Rd. 

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

μ
Case

Thoroughfare

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor Arterial

Collector

Proposed Collector

Trails Master Plan

Type

CW_Spine

\\\ ComW_Conn

Loc_Conn



G

GG

G

G

G

G

G
G G

G

G

G

G

G
G G

G
G

G
G

G

G

G
G

G
G

G

G
G

G

G

G

GG

G

G

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G G

G

G

GG
G

G
G

GG
GG

G

G
G

G G

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G
G

G

G

G

G

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G
G

Westfield Planned 
Development 

12
"

10"

8"

6"

8"

8"

12
"

12
"

8"

8"

8"
8"

8"

8"10
"

8"

10"

8"

8"

10
"

10"

8"
8"

10"

10"

8"

8"

8"

10
"

8"

8"

8"

10"
8"

8"

8"6"

8"

8"

8"

6"

8"

8"
8"8"

8"

8"

8"

8"

8"

8"

8"

8"

10"

8"

8"

12
"

8"

8"

10"

10
"

8"

8"
8"

8"

8"

8"

8"

8"

8"

8"

8"

10
"

8"

2"

18
"

8"

14"

12"

6"

1.5" 3" 2.
5"

6"

8"

1.5"

8"
12"

8"

8"

6"

8"

8"

8
"

8"
8

"

6"

8"

8"

3"

8
"

8"

3"

8"

8"

6"

6"

6"

6"

8"

8"

8"

6"

8"

8"

8"

1.5"

1.
5"

8"

6"

6"
8"

6"

H
IL

L
IA

R
D

 R
D

N
 P

E
A

 R
ID

G
E

 R
D

PRAIRIE VIEW RD

W ADAMS AVE

ALASKA AVE

L
IG

H
T

N
E

R
 L

N

H
IL

LI
A

R
D

 R
D

Z-FY-15-17 Utilities 
Location: Mutliple Tracts Bordering:
N. Pea Ridge Rd; Priairie View Rd; 

Stonehollow Dr; Westfield Blvd; and Hilliard Rd. 

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

μ
Case

G Fire Hydrant Sewer Line Water Line
0 1,000 2,000500

Feet



Westfield Planned 
Development 

H
IL

L
IA

R
D

 R
D

N
 P

E
A

 R
ID

G
E

 R
D

PRAIRIE VIEW RD

HONEYSUCKLE
W ADAMS AVE

W
E

S
T

F
IE

L
D

 B
L

V
D

REDBRUSH

HAWTHORN

AIRPORT RD

RESEARCH LOOP

FA
W

N
 L

IL
Y

 D
R

FIELDSTONE DR

ALABAMA AVE

BRIDGEPOINTE DR

ALASKA AVE

B
R

O
O

K
S

 D
R

L
IG

H
T

N
E

R
 L

N

WOODBURY DR

F
O

X
TA

IL

STONEHOLLOW DR

G
A

R
D

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 D

R

S
 P

E
A

 R
ID

G
E

 R
D

HILLIARD RD
901

914

6101

7619

1216

5901

1250

1722

521

7907

7415

6201

121

7020

7100

6608

463

7949

7050

7154

7051

7020

8015

1155

6653

6849

7020

6531

616
5701

419

309

520

610

7600

6761

6445

430

8502

1211

8119

6850

6652

6566

1954

651

7512

6532

7556

215

6444

254

121

8503

6762

6567

6402

500

6602

1215

308

18

146

1257

174

615

510

7462

511
601

503

418

1195

7348

207

8150

6559

6502

600

7372

305

7410

219

502

406

402

506

4077349

179

7446

7373

500

408

507

404

504

7289

509

6

30
505

501

409

206

6587

1851

8313

8422

8413

116

218

21 21
16

7512

8206

8306

4

309

1111

219 313 429

108

7290

500

1115

7701

1102

221

310

8213

8501

8119
100

210

8402

8417

8409

8603

8118

1103

103

1123

425

7704

1144

313

626

425

8122

528

318

519

531 604

516

1135

330

207

516

422

8623

413

8111

112

110

7826

7827

7827

7811

1305

7811

7819
8001

7827

7913

7913

8107

8108

1211

8119

1233

8610

8602

8510

7809

101

Z-FY-15-17 Notification Map and Aerial Location: Mutliple Tracts Bordering:
N. Pea Ridge Rd; Priairie View Rd; 

Stonehollow Dr; Westfield Blvd; and Hilliard Rd. 

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

μ



Westfield Master Development Standards and Conditions 
Planned 
Development  

Allowed Uses  UDC Limitations/Conditions to be 
waived  

Prohibited 
Uses  

Specific Standards/ Conditions 
PD

-G
R 

All uses permitted in 
General Retail  

Section 7.7.4  
Eliminating the required continuous 
buffering along the common boundary 
between nonresidential or multiple-
family uses and agricultural or 
residential uses within PD-GR. 

Asphalt or 
Concrete 
Batching Plant 
(temporary) 

Section 7.7.4  
Continuous buffering is required along 
the common boundary between 
nonresidential or multiple-family uses and 
an agricultural or residential zoning 
district within PD-GR. APPLICABLE  
 
Applicant has agreed to exceed buffering 
standard in accordance with Figure 1 
See Figure 1 

Theater or Playhouse 
(open or drive-in)   

Section 5.1: Use not allowed in GR - 
allowed by right in PD-GR 

  

Farmers’ Market  Section 5.6.2: General Requirements  Section 5.6.7: Farmers’ Market- 
APPLICABLE 

Alcoholic Beverage 
Sales for on premise 
consumption: beer 
and wine only less 
than 75% revenue 
from alcohol  

Section 5.3.15B: 
Distance requirements from church  

 Section 5.3.1 B  
Distance requirements from school or 
public hospital APPLICABLE 

Alcoholic Beverage 
Sales for on premise 
consumption: all 
alcoholic beverages 
75% or more revenue   

 
Section 5.3.15 B& C: 
Eliminating distance requirements from 
church, parkland, residentially zoned or 
developed property 

 Section 5.3.1 B  
Distance requirements from school or 
public hospital APPLICABLE 
 

Alcoholic Beverage 
Sales for on premise 
consumption: all 
alcoholic beverages 
more than 50% and 
less than 75% revenue 

 
Section 5.3.15B: 
Distance requirements from church  

 Section 5.3.1 B  
Distance requirements from school or 
public hospital APPLICABLE 
 



Planned 
Development  

Allowed Uses  UDC Limitations/Conditions to be 
waived  

Prohibited 
Uses  

Specific Standards/ Conditions 

Vertical Mixed Use 
(Multi-family) 

See Multi-family 
Section 5.1: Use not allowed in GR - 
allowed by right in PD-GR  
  

 Section 5.3.3 
Yard Requirements APPLICABLE 

Multi-family 
Residential MF-3   

Section 5.1: Use not allowed in GR - 
allowed by right in PD-GR  
  

 Section 5.3.3 
Yard Requirements APPLICABLE 

PD
-G

R1
 

All uses allowed in PD-
GR  

Section 7.7.4  
Eliminating the required continuous 
buffering along the common boundary 
between nonresidential or multiple-
family uses and agricultural or 
residential uses within PD-GR1 
 
Section 5.3.15 B&C 
Eliminating distance requirements from 
church, parkland, residentially zoned or 
developed property 

Asphalt or 
Concrete 
Batching Plant 
(temporary) 

Section 7.7.4  
Continuous buffering is required along 
the common boundary between 
nonresidential or multiple-family uses and 
an agricultural or residential zoning 
district within PD-GR1. APPLICABLE  
 
Section 5.3.1 B  
Distance requirements from school or 
public hospital APPLICABLE 
 
Applicant has agreed to exceed buffering 
standard in accordance with Figure 1 
See Figure 1 

Mini-Storage 
Warehouses 

Section 5.1: Use not allowed in GR - 
allowed by right in PD-GR 

 Section 5.3.8  - Limits to 2,000 Cubic feet 
per unit APPLICABLE 

PD
-S

F-
3 

Single Family 
Detached Dwelling 

Section 4.5.1 –  
 Reduce Min Side (Corner) yard 

setback from 15’ 1o 10’ 
 Eliminate maximum building 

coverage  for rear half of lot 

 Applicant has agreed to exceed the city’s 
residential landscape standards through 
the provision of the following: 

 Fully sodded lots – exclusive of 
driveways, walks, patios, 
swimming pools, and landscaped 
beds;  

 3 shrubs in accordance with 
Section 7.4.5C 

 One large canopy tree 

P D - Single Family 
Detached Dwelling  

Section 4.5.1 –   



Planned 
Development  

Allowed Uses  UDC Limitations/Conditions to be 
waived  

Prohibited 
Uses  

Specific Standards/ Conditions 

 Min. Lot Area- from 2,300SF  to 
2,000SF 

 Min. Lot Depth from 100’ to 90’ 
 Min. Side Corner Yard from 15’ to 

10’ 
 Eliminate maximum building 

coverage  for rear half of lot  
 Max height from 2.5 stories to 3 

stories 

Applicant has agreed to exceed the city’s 
residential landscape standards through 
the provision of the following: 

 Fully sodded lots – exclusive of 
driveways, walks, patios, 
swimming pools, and landscaped 
beds;  

 3 shrubs in accordance with 
Section 7.4.5C 

 One large canopy tree 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Single Family Attached 
Dwelling 

Section 4.5.2   
 Min. Lot Area- from 2,300SF  to 

2,000SF 
 Min. Lot Depth from 100’ to 90’ 
 Min. Side Corner Yard from 15’ to 

10’ 
 Eliminate maximum building 

coverage  for rear half of lot  
 Max height from 2.5 stories to 3 

stories 

 

Patio Home 
 

Section 4.5.3 
 Min. Lot Area- from 2,300SF  to 

2000SF 
 Min. Side Corner Yard from 15’ to 

10’ 
 Eliminate maximum building 

coverage  for rear half of lot  
 Max height from 2.5 stories to 3 

stories 

 

 

 
 
 



 
 
 
Figure I 

 





































 
 

 
 

1 

 

 ORDINANCE NO.     
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A REZONING ON APPROXIMATELY 224.549 
ACRES LOCATED TO THE NORTH OF WEST ADAMS AVENUE AND ON 
THE EAST AND WEST SIDES OF WESTFIELD BOULEVARD FROM 
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT, LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT AND 
GENERAL RETAIL DISTRICT TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT-GENERAL 
RETAIL DISTRICT WITH A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR THE ON-
SITE SALE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES, PLANNED DEVELOPMENT-
SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING 3 DISTRICT, AND PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT-SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED DWELLING 3 DISTRICT; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the City of Temple, Texas, provides 

for the issuance of conditional use permits under certain conditions and authorizes the City 
Council to impose such developmental standards and safeguards as the conditions and locations 
indicate to be important to the welfare or protection of adjacent property and for the protection of 
adjacent property from excessive noise, vibration, dust, dirt, smoke, fumes, gas, odor, explosion, 
glare, offensive view or other undesirable or hazardous conditions, and for the establishment of 
conditions of operation, time limits, location, arrangement and construction for any use for which 
a permit is authorized;  
 

Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after due 
consideration of the location and zoning classification of the establishment, has recommended 
that the City Council approve this application; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, after public notice as required 
by law, has at a public hearing, carefully considered all the evidence submitted concerning the 
approximately 224.549 acres located to the north of West Adams Avenue and on the east and 
west sides of Westfield Boulevard, and has heard the comments and evidence presented by all 
persons supporting or opposing this matter at said public hearing, and after examining the 
location and the zoning classification of the establishment, finds that the proposed use of the 
premises substantially complies with the comprehensive plan and the area plan adopted by the 
City Council. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning on approximately 224.549 acres located to 
the north of West Adams Avenue and on the east and west sides of Westfield Boulevard from 
Agricultural District, Light Industrial District and General Retail District to Planned 
Development-General Retail District with a Conditional Use Permit  for the on-premise sale of 
alcoholic beverages, Planned Development-Single Family Dwelling 3 District, and Planned 



 
 

 
 

2 

Development-Single Family Attached Dwelling 3 District, more fully described in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
 Part 2: The owners/applicants, their employees, lessees, agents or representatives, 
hereinafter called "permittee" shall comply with the following developmental standards and 
conditions of operation: 

 
A. That the permittee must comply with applicable licensing and permit provisions 

of the Alcoholic Beverage Code within six (6) months from the date of the 
issuance of this conditional use permit by the City Council, such limitation in time 
being subject to review and possible extension by the City. 

 
B. That the permittee must maintain the premises in a manner that will not be 

detrimental to the public welfare of the citizens of the City. 
 

C. That the permittee must operate the establishment in such a manner as to prevent 
excessive noise, dirt, litter, and odors on the establishments or in the surrounding 
area and shall operate the establishment in such a manner as to minimize 
disturbance to surrounding property owners. 

 
D. That the City Council may revoke a conditional use permit if it affirmatively 

determines that the issuance of the same is (1) incompatible with the surrounding 
uses of property, or (2) detrimental or offensive to the neighborhood or contrary 
to the health, safety, and general welfare of the City and its inhabitants. 

 
E. That conditional use permit issued under this section runs with the property and is 

not affected by a change in the owner or lessee of a permitted establishment. 
 
F. That a conditional use permit may be canceled, suspended, or revoked in 

accordance with the revocation clause set forth in Section 7-609 of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

 
Part 3: The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the 

preamble of this ordinance are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative 
provisions hereof. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of 
any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly 
so ordained. 



 
 

 
 

3 

 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 18th day of 
June, 2015. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 2nd day of July, 2015. 
  

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              
       DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



   

 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  
   

07/02/15 
Item #4(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW  
Brian Chandler Planning Director,  
Beverly Zendt Assistant Planning Director   
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  SECOND & FINAL READING – Z-FY-15-19: Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing a Conditional Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premise consumption 
for properties located at 7373 and 7349 Honeysuckle Drive, 7348 West Adams Avenue and 7410 West 
Adams Avenue. 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its May 18, 2015 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 8 to 0 to recommend approval of the requested Conditional Use 
Permit which will allow the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premise consumption in establishments 
where the gross revenue from the sale of alcoholic beverages is less than 75% of the total gross 
revenue of the establishment sales. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit 
which will allow the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premise consumption in establishments where 
the gross revenue from the sale of alcoholic beverages is less than 75% of the total gross revenue of 
the establishment sales. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Synopsis. 
Approval of this item will result in the granting of a Conditional Use Permit allowing for the sale of alcohol 
for on-premise consumption in establishments where the gross revenue from the sale of alcoholic 
beverages is less than 75% of the total gross revenue of the establishment sales. A Conditional Use 
Permit runs with the property and a change in ownership or a change in lessee does not affect the 
Conditional Use Permit. 
 

Background. 
The applicant is seeking a conditional use permit for an existing commercial development that provides 
space for retail, office and restaurant uses. The applicant has applied for a Conditional Use Permit on 
behalf of a tenant who operates a restaurant (La Riv Italian Cuisine) in the subject development and 
would like the opportunity to serve alcoholic beverages to the restaurant’s clientele. Section 5.3.15 of 
the Unified Development Code has identified multiple performance standards related to the provision 
of a Conditional Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premise consumption.  Some of 
which include, but are not limited to: 

 



   
07/02/15 

Item #4(G) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 The permittee must comply with applicable licensing and permit provisions of the Alcoholic 
Beverage Code within six months from the date of the issuance of the Conditional Use Permit, 
such limitation in time being subject to City review and possible extension. 

 The permittee must demonstrate that the granting of the permit would not be detrimental to the 
public welfare of the citizens of the City. 

 The permittee must, at all times, provide an adequate number of employees for security 
purposes to adequately control the establishment to prevent incidents of drunkenness, disorderly 
conduct and raucous behavior. The permittee must consult with the Chief of Police, who acts in 
an advisory capacity, to determine the number of qualified employees necessary to meet such 
obligations. 

 
Additionally, the UDC states: 
The City Council may deny or revoke a Conditional Use Permit in accordance with Sec. 3.5 if it 
affirmatively determines that the issuance of the permit is:  
a. Incompatible with the surrounding uses of property; or  
b. Detrimental or offensive to the neighborhood or contrary to the health, safety and general welfare 

of the City and its inhabitants. 
 

SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the property, 
Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 

 
Direction 

 
FLUP 

 
Zoning

 
Current Land Use 

Subject Property  Suburban Commercial  General Retail  Office, Retail, 
Restaurants; Personal 
Service (Spa) 

North  Suburban Commercial    GR Undeveloped, Residential  
South  Suburban Residential  NS, AG Office, Retail, Bank, 

Church  
East  Suburban Commercial   GR Bank     
West  Suburban Commercial   GR Office  

 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan. 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map 
 

Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Yes 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance Yes 
CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

 
 



   
07/02/15 

Item #4(G) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 3 of 3 
 
Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property falls into the Suburban Commercial Future Land Use Character Area. The 
Suburban Commercial character area is appropriate for office, retail, and service uses adjacent to and 
abutting residential neighborhoods and in other areas where the community’s image and aesthetic 
value should be promoted, such as gateways and high profile corridor locations. The existing uses, 
development character and proposed Conditional Use Permit are consistent with the Suburban 
Commercial Future Land Use Character area. The site density, landscaping and the residential 
character of the building design and site amenity features demonstrate a high quality of development 
compatible with surrounding neighborhood and retail uses. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) and Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalk Ordinance 
The subject property is located on West Adams and Honeysuckle Drive.  West Adams is a constructed 
Major Arterial with an existing City-Wide Spine Trail located on the north side of West Adams. No new 
sidewalks or roads are proposed with this project.  
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
As the property is already developed, adequate utilities have been established to serve this site. The 
subject lots are served by a 14” water line and a 12’ sewer line.  
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: This site conforms to the following development regulations for 
non-residential development in the General Retail District: 
Minimum Lot Size N/A 
Minimum Lot Width N/A 
Minimum Lot Depth N/A 
Front Yard 15’ 
Side Yard 10’ 
Side Yard (Corner) 10’ 
Rear Yard 0 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE: 22 notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent out to 
property owners within 200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City Ordinance.  
As of Wednesday Tuesday May 13, 2015, 18 notices have been returned in favor of the proposed 
rezoning and no notices have been returned in opposition to the proposed rezoning. The newspaper 
printed notice of the public hearing on May 7, 2015, in accordance with state law and local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Zoning & Location Map 
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Future Land Use and Character Map    
Localized area of the Thoroughfare & Trails Plan (combined) 
Utility Map 
Notification Map 
Returned Property Owner Notices 
Ordinance 



G
R

A
G

N
S

7
4

1
0

7
4

6
2

7
3

4
8

7
2

8
9

7
3

4
9

7
3

7
3

7
4

4
5

7
4

6
7

1
7

9

8
0

1
5

7
3

4
8

7
4

2
5

7
3

7
2

7
2

9
0

7
2

3
2

W
 A

D
A

M
S

 A
V

E

H
O

N
E

Y
S

U
C

K
L

E

G
IS

 p
ro

d
uc

ts
 a

re
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

os
es

 a
n

d 
m

ay
 n

o
t h

av
e 

b
ee

n 
p

re
p

ar
e

d 
fo

r 
o

r 
b

e 
su

ita
b

le
 fo

r 
le

ga
l, 

e
ng

in
ee

rin
g

, o
r 

su
rv

ey
in

g 
p

ur
p

os
es

.  
T

h
ey

 
do

 n
o

t r
e

pr
e

se
nt

 a
n

 o
n

-t
h

e-
g

ro
u

n
d 

su
rv

e
y 

an
d

 
re

p
re

se
n

t o
nl

y 
th

e
 a

p
pr

o
xi

m
a

te
 r

el
at

iv
e

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s.

C
ity

 o
f 

Te
m

p
le

 P
la

n
n

in
g

C
ity

 o
f 

Te
m

p
le

 G
IS

bz
e

n
dt

Zo
ni

ng
 an

d 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
Ma

p 

0
20

0
10

0
Fe

et

Z-
FY

-1
5-

19
73

73
 an

d 
73

49
 H

on
ey

su
ck

le 
Dr

ive
 &

 
73

48
  a

nd
 74

10
 W

es
t A

da
m

s A
ve

nu
e

Z
on

in
g

C
as

e
A

d
dr

e
ss

es
1

2
3

4



Subject Property: Location: Mutliple Tracts Bordering:
N. Pea Ridge Rd; Prairie View Rd; 

Stonehollow Dr; Westfield Blvd; and Hilliard Rd. 



Property to the North 

Property to the South 



Property to the West 

Property to the East 



S
u

b
u

rb
a

n
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l

A
u

to
-U

rb
an

 M
u

lt
i-

F
a

m
il

y

S
u

b
u

rb
a

n
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l

S
u

b
u

rb
a

n
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l

S
u

b
u

rb
a

n
 R

e
s

id
e

n
ti

al

S
u

b
u

rb
a

n
 R

e
s

id
e

n
ti

al

H
O

N
E

Y
S

U
C

K
L

E

W
 A

D
A

M
S

 A
V

E

VERBENA DR

MEADOWBROOK DR

H
O

N
E

Y
S

U
C

K
L

E
 D

R

71
5

0

71
5

4

70
2

0

70
2

0

72
8

9

74
1

0

74
6

2

80
1

575
5

6

73
4

8

73
7

2

73
4

8

17
9

74
8

0

74
2

5

73
4

9

74
4

6

73
7

3

74
4

5

74
6

7

17
4

72
9

0

73
5

3

14
6

74
5

8

72
8

5

72
3

2

75
3

6

30
5

20
7

G
IS

 p
ro

d
uc

ts
 a

re
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

os
es

 a
n

d 
m

ay
 n

o
t h

av
e 

b
ee

n 
p

re
p

ar
e

d 
fo

r 
o

r 
b

e 
su

ita
b

le
 fo

r 
le

ga
l, 

e
ng

in
ee

rin
g

, o
r 

su
rv

ey
in

g 
p

ur
p

os
es

.  
T

h
ey

 
do

 n
o

t r
e

pr
e

se
nt

 a
n

 o
n

-t
h

e-
g

ro
u

n
d 

su
rv

e
y 

an
d

 
re

p
re

se
n

t o
nl

y 
th

e
 a

p
pr

o
xi

m
a

te
 r

el
at

iv
e

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s.
C

a
se

A
dd

re
ss

es
C

ity
 o

f 
Te

m
p

le
 P

la
n

n
in

g
C

ity
 o

f 
Te

m
p

le
 G

IS
bz

e
n

dt

Fu
tu

re
 L

an
d 

Us
e M

ap
 

0
12

0
60Fe

et

Z-
FY

-1
5-

19
73

73
 an

d 
73

49
 H

on
ey

su
ck

le 
Dr

ive
 &

 
73

48
  a

nd
 74

10
 W

es
t A

da
m

s A
ve

nu
e

12
34



Z
-F

Y
-1

5
-1

9

C
W

_S
pi

ne
M

aj
o

r 
A

rt
er

ia
l

H
O

N
E

Y
S

U
C

K
L

E

W
 A

D
A

M
S

 A
V

E

VERBENA DR

MEADOWBROOK DR

72
8

9

74
1

0

74
6

2

71
5

0

73
4

8
70

2
0

80
1

5

73
4

8

73
7

2

17
9

73
4

9

73
7

3

74
2

5

74
4

5

74
6

7
70

2
0

74
4

6

74
8

0

72
9

0

75
5

6

71
5

4

17
4

73
5

3

74
5

8

72
3

2

75
3

6

72
8

5

14
6

G
IS

 p
ro

d
uc

ts
 a

re
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

os
es

 a
n

d 
m

ay
 n

o
t h

av
e 

b
ee

n 
p

re
p

ar
e

d 
fo

r 
o

r 
b

e 
su

ita
b

le
 fo

r 
le

ga
l, 

e
ng

in
ee

rin
g

, o
r 

su
rv

ey
in

g 
p

ur
p

os
es

.  
T

h
ey

 
do

 n
o

t r
e

pr
e

se
nt

 a
n

 o
n

-t
h

e-
g

ro
u

n
d 

su
rv

e
y 

an
d

 
re

p
re

se
n

t o
nl

y 
th

e
 a

p
pr

o
xi

m
a

te
 r

el
at

iv
e

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s.

C
ity

 o
f 

Te
m

p
le

 P
la

n
n

in
g

C
ity

 o
f 

Te
m

p
le

 G
IS

bz
e

n
dt

Ma
st

er
 Tr

ail
s P

lan
 an

d 
Th

or
og

hf
ar

e P
lan

 

0
11

0
55Fe

et

Z-
FY

-1
5-

19
73

73
 an

d 
73

49
 H

on
ey

su
ck

le 
Dr

ive
 &

 
73

48
  a

nd
 74

10
 W

es
t A

da
m

s A
ve

nu
e

C
as

e



G
G

G

G

G

G

G

GZ
-F

Y
-1

5
-1

9

12"

8"

6"

4"

8"

8"

8"

8"

3"

14
"

8"

6"

8"

8"
6"

8"

8"

8"

8"

W
 A

D
A

M
S

 A
V

E

H
O

N
E

Y
S

U
C

K
L

E

VERBENA DR

MEADOWBROOK DR

80
1

5

71
5

0

71
5

4

70
2

0

70
2

0

72
8

9

74
1

0

74
2

5

74
6

2

75
5

6

73
4

8
17

4

73
7

2

73
4

8

74
8

0

14
6

17
9

73
4

9

74
4

6

73
7

3

74
4

5

74
6

7

73
5

3

72
8

5

20
7

72
9

0

74
5

8

30
5

75
4

6

72
3

2

75
3

6

G
IS

 p
ro

d
uc

ts
 a

re
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

os
es

 a
n

d 
m

ay
 n

o
t h

av
e 

b
ee

n 
p

re
p

ar
e

d 
fo

r 
o

r 
b

e 
su

ita
b

le
 fo

r 
le

ga
l, 

e
ng

in
ee

rin
g

, o
r 

su
rv

ey
in

g 
p

ur
p

os
es

.  
T

h
ey

 
do

 n
o

t r
e

pr
e

se
nt

 a
n

 o
n

-t
h

e-
g

ro
u

n
d 

su
rv

e
y 

an
d

 
re

p
re

se
n

t o
nl

y 
th

e
 a

p
pr

o
xi

m
a

te
 r

el
at

iv
e

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s.

C
ity

 o
f 

Te
m

p
le

 P
la

n
n

in
g

C
ity

 o
f 

Te
m

p
le

 G
IS

bz
e

n
dt

Ut
ilit

ies
 

0
15

0
75Fe

et

Z-
FY

-1
5-

19
73

73
 an

d 
73

49
 H

on
ey

su
ck

le 
Dr

ive
 &

 
73

48
  a

nd
 74

10
 W

es
t A

da
m

s A
ve

nu
e

G
F

ir
e 

H
yd

ra
nt

S
ew

e
r 

Li
n

e
W

at
e

r 
L

in
e

C
as

e



8
0

1
5

7
1

5
0

7
4

2
5

7
2

8
9

7
4

1
0

7
4

6
2

7
3

4
8

7
0

2
0

7
1

5
4

1
7

4

7
3

4
8

7
3

7
2

7
3

4
9

1
7

9

7
3

7
3

7
2

8
5

7
4

4
5

1
4

6

7
4

6
7

7
3

5
3

7
4

4
6

7
4

8
0

7
5

5
6

7
2

9
0

7
0

2
0

5

7
4

5
8

7
3

6
3

7
5

4
6

7
2

3
2

7
5

3
6

Z
-F

Y
-1

5
-1

9

W
 A

D
A

M
S

 A
V

E

H
O

N
E

Y
S

U
C

K
L

E

VERBENA DR

MEADOWBROOK DR

H
O

N
E

Y
S

U
C

K
L

E
 D

R

G
IS

 p
ro

d
uc

ts
 a

re
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

os
es

 a
n

d 
m

ay
 n

o
t h

av
e 

b
ee

n 
p

re
p

ar
e

d 
fo

r 
o

r 
b

e 
su

ita
b

le
 fo

r 
le

ga
l, 

e
ng

in
ee

rin
g

, o
r 

su
rv

ey
in

g 
p

ur
p

os
es

.  
T

h
ey

 
do

 n
o

t r
e

pr
e

se
nt

 a
n

 o
n

-t
h

e-
g

ro
u

n
d 

su
rv

e
y 

an
d

 
re

p
re

se
n

t o
nl

y 
th

e
 a

p
pr

o
xi

m
a

te
 r

el
at

iv
e

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s.

C
ity

 o
f 

Te
m

p
le

 P
la

n
n

in
g

C
ity

 o
f 

Te
m

p
le

 G
IS

bz
e

n
dt

Pr
op

er
ty

 O
wn

er
 N

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 
Ma

p 

0
35

0
17

5
Fe

et

Z-
FY

-1
5-

19
73

73
 an

d 
73

49
 H

on
ey

su
ck

le 
Dr

ive
 &

 
73

48
  a

nd
 74

10
 W

es
t A

da
m

s A
ve

nu
e

A
d

dr
e

ss
es

20
0

' B
uf

fe
r

C
as

e
1

2
3

4





















1

ORDINANCE NO.________________
(Z-FY-15-19)

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR THE SALE OF 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES FOR ON-PREMISE CONSUMPTION FOR 
PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 7373 AND 7349 HONEYSUCKLE DRIVE, 7348 
WEST ADAMS AVENUE AND 7410 WEST ADAMS AVENUE;
DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE.

_______________________________________________________________________

Whereas, the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the City of Temple, Texas, provides 
for the issuance of conditional use permits under certain conditions and authorizes the City 
Council to impose such developmental standards and safeguards as the conditions and locations 
indicate to be important to the welfare or protection of adjacent property and for the protection of 
adjacent property from excessive noise, vibration, dust, dirt, smoke, fumes, gas, odor, explosion, 
glare, offensive view or other undesirable or hazardous conditions, and for the establishment of 
conditions of operation, time limits, location, arrangement and construction for any use for which 
a permit is authorized; 

Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after due 
consideration of the conditions, operation and location of property described 7373 and 7349 
Honeysuckle Drive, 7348 West Adams Avenue and 7410 West Adams Avenue, recommends that 
the City Council approve the application for this Conditional Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic 
beverages for on-premise consumption where the gross revenue from the sale of alcoholic 
beverages is less than 75% of the total gross revenue of the establishment sales; and

Whereas, the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, after public notice as required 
by law, has at a public hearing, carefully considered all the evidence submitted by the applicant 
concerning the proposed plans for operation of said establishment and has heard the comments 
and evidence presented by all persons supporting or opposing this application at said public 
hearing, and after examining the conditions, operation and the location of said establishment, 
finds that the proposed use of the premises substantially complies with the comprehensive plan 
and the area plan adopted by the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE,
TEXAS, THAT:

Part 1: The City Council approves a Conditional Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic 
beverages for on-premise consumption where the gross revenue from the sale of alcoholic 
beverages is less than 75% of the total gross revenue of the establishment sales for properties 
located at 7373 and 7349 Honeysuckle Drive, 7348 West Adams Avenue and 7410 West Adams 
Avenue, more fully described in Exhibit ‘A’, attached hereto and made a part hereof for all 
purposes.

Part 2: The owner/applicant, his employees, lessees, agents or representatives, 
hereinafter called "permittee" shall comply with the following developmental standards and
conditions of operation:



2

A. The permittee must comply with applicable licensing and permit provisions of the 
Alcoholic Beverage Code within six months from the date of the issuance of the 
Conditional Use Permit, such limitation in time being subject to City review and possible 
extension.
B. The permittee must demonstrate that the granting of the permit would not be 
detrimental to the public welfare of the citizens of the City.
C. The permittee must, at all times, provide an adequate number of employees for 
security purposes to adequately control the establishment to prevent incidents of 
drunkenness, disorderly conduct and raucous behavior. The permittee must consult with 
the Chief of Police, who acts in an advisory capacity, to determine the number of 
qualified employees necessary to meet such obligations.

Part 3: The Director of Planning is hereby directed to make the necessary changes to the 
City Zoning Map accordingly.

Part 4: The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the 
preamble of this ordinance are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative 
provisions hereof.

Part 5: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of 
any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section.

Part 6: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly 
so ordained.

Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act.

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 18th day of 
July, 2015.

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 2nd day of July, 2015.

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS

_______________________________
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ______________________________
Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros
City Secretary City Attorney



   

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

   

07/02/15 
Item #4(H)  

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 5 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW  
 
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  SECOND & FINAL READING – Z-FY-15-18: Consider adopting an ordinance 
amending Ordinance No. 2014-4689, and the corresponding site plan, to add a proposed apartment 
complex project in the Shoppes on the Hill Subdivision located at 2510 South 31st Street.  
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its May 18, 2015 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 6 to 2 to recommend approval of the site plan as presented. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the eleven (11) Sec. 6.3 TMED T5-c 
exceptions associated with the Planned Development Site Plan, which has been determined to meet 
all of the Development Plan Review Criteria in Sec. 3.4.5, with the following condition: 

 Oncor provides approval of the site plan, which includes a proposed detention pond/dog park, 
pool and parking either directly under or near an existing electrical transmission line 

 
ITEM SUMMARY:   
The applicant has requested approval of the following Sec. 6.3 TMED T5-c Code exceptions: 

1. Sec. 6.3.5.D. (Building Configuration)  
 Building story height (14’ required: 10’ 6” proposed) 

2. Sec. 6.3.6.E.1 (Specific Use Standards)  
 Uses are limited to a maximum gross floor area of 10,000 square feet (apartment units 

proposed within 5 different buildings that exceed the 10,000 square feet limitation) 
3. Sec. 6.3.6.E.6 (Specific Use Standards)  

 Overhead doors are prohibited (proposed garages include overhead doors)  
4. Sec. 6.3.6.E.12 (Specific Use Standards)  

 Allowing residential on the ground floor (T5-c prohibits apartments on 1st floor) 
5. Sec. 6.3.8.G.4. (Alleys)  

 Alleys are not proposed (T5-c requires alleys) 
6. Sec. 6.3.11.B.5. (Public Frontage: Type E)  

 Constructing a 6’ sidewalk and 6’ planting strip along Everton to the back-of-curb (4’ 
sidewalk to the back-of-curb is proposed due to right-of-way and utility constraints) 

 Applicant has agreed to provide a 6’ planting strip behind the 4’ sidewalk where not in 
conflict with utilities  

7. Sec. 6.3.13.D. (Building Design)  
 Roof pitch (5:12 required: 4:12 proposed) 



   
07/02/15 

Item #4(H)  
Consent Agenda 

Page 2 of 5 
 

8. Sec. 6.3.14 (Parking and Garage Standards)  
 Number of garage parking spaces (1 per 2 units required: 1 per 3.5 units proposed)  
 Garages are not permitted to front onto Public Right-of-Way (some garages are proposed 

to face S. 31st Street) 
9. Sec. 6.3.15.E. (Private Property Common Area Standards)  

 Approximately 20,500 sf of Common Area is required 
 Applicant proposes at least 11,860 sf of Common Area: pool (2,100 sf); deck (7,055 sf); 

lawn (605 sf); additional green space north of pool (2,000 sf) and a fountain (100 sf) 
 An estimated 8,000 sf dog park within the stormwater detention area is proposed but not 

included in the calculations 
10. Sec. 6.3.16.B. (Permitted Sign Types)  

 Monument Signs may be approved by Warrant only 
11. Sec. 6.3.16.C. (Monument Sign)  

 Sign Height (6’ max monument sign requirements: propose a max height of 7’ 6” to top of 
sign face to accommodate architectural design elements that may extend above 7’ 6” and 
to accommodate grade changes) 

 
The proposed project at 2510 S. 31st is the 2nd Phase of development associated with the Shoppes 
on the Hill PD-TMED T5-c adopted by City Council on October 16, 2014, which consists of 207 
apartment units and amenities on 8.146 acres. 
 
Traffic Signal at S. 31st Street 
 

 A new traffic signal at the Shoppes on the Hill S. 31st Street and Scott and White emergency 
entrances has been approved by TXDOT, which is proposed to be installed late summer or early 
fall of 2015. 

 
COMPLIANCE SUMMARY: 
The project proposes to comply with the following sample of relevant standards: 

1. Minimum Density/Residential Units per Acre (24 units per acre required) 
2. Bike rack requirements  
3. Minimum parking ratios and parking space dimensions  
4. Access and connectivity standards related to driveway spacing and connection requirements 
5. Sidewalks extending the entire length of the development's frontage on a public street 
6. Sidewalks connecting to existing adjacent sidewalks 
7. Selections from approved landscaping list 
8. Irrigated landscaping for at least 15 percent of site 
9. 80 percent maximum of impervious cover 
10. Setback requirements 
11. Screening of mechanical equipment and waste containers 
12. Sidewalk connections to parking within the lot, to primary entrances of each residential building, 

to all associated outdoor amenities and to the perimeter street sidewalk system 
13. Exterior finish materials and percentages 
14. Street lights that are consistent with the TMED design guidelines 
15. All proposed electric, telephone, and cable wires along the public street right-of-way 

underground  



   
07/02/15 

Item #4(H)  
Consent Agenda 

Page 3 of 5 
 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (UDC SEC. 3.4): A Planned development is a flexible overlay zoning 
district designed to respond to unique development proposals, special design considerations and land 
use transitions by allowing evaluation of land use relationships to surrounding areas through 
development plan approval. 
 
As part of the Planned Development request, a Development Plan (Site Plan) is required for review 
and consideration by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.  
 
Development Plan Review Criteria (UDC Sec. 3.4.5): In determining whether to approve, approve with 
conditions or deny a Planned Development application, the Planning & Zoning Commission and City 
Council must consider the following criteria: 

A. The plan complies with all provisions of the Design and Development standards manual, 
the UDC and other ordinances of the City, 

B. The environmental impact of the development relating to the preservation of existing 
natural resources of the surrounding properties and neighborhood is mitigated, 

C. The development is in harmony with the character, use and design of the surrounding 
area, 

D. Safe and efficient vehicular and pedestrian circulation systems are provided, 
E. Off-street parking and loading facilities are designed to ensure that all such spaces are 

useable and are safely and conveniently arranged, and 
F. Streets are designed with sufficient width and suitable grade and location to 

accommodate prospective traffic and to provide access for firefighting and emergency 
equipment to buildings. 

 
Additional Standards (UDC Sec. 3.4.2C): In approving a Planned Development, the City Council may 
require additional standards deemed necessary to create a reasonable transition to, and protection of, 
adjacent property and public areas, including but not limited to, access and circulations, signs, parking, 
building design, location and height, light, landscaping, property owners associations, open space, 
topography and screening. 
 
Expiration (UDC Sec. 3.4.7): If no development has occurred on a Planned Development-zoned tract 
or lot within two years of the date of approval, the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council 
may require a new public hearing to evaluate the appropriateness of the previously authorized Planned 
Development approval. 
 
Design Review Committee (DRC):  Per Sec. 3.4.2 (Planned Development) of the UDC, DRC must 
review the design elements of the required Development Plan (site plan) submittal for Planned 
Development Districts.  DRC reviewed the proposed Development Plan at their May 7, 2015 meeting, 
at which time the following topics were discussed: 

 Sidewalk requirements along Everton  
 Type E frontage requirements 
 Park fees and qualifying amenities 
 Fire access 
 Public utility easements 

 
 



   
07/02/15 

Item #4(H)  
Consent Agenda 

Page 4 of 5 
 
All questions by DRC members were adequately addressed with the exception of whether Oncor had 
given approval for the proposed improvements under or near an existing electrical transmission line.  
The applicant has indicated that Oncor will not conduct a formal review of the project until the grading 
plan has been submitted. 
 
LAND USE: Some of the uses permitted by right in the T5-c district include, but are not limited to: 

 
Residential uses    Nonresidential uses 
Single-Family (Attached)   Assisted Living (with limitations) 
Multi-family (with limitations)   Hospital 
      All Retail 

Restaurant (no drive-through) 
On-premise alcohol consumption (with a CUP) 

Prohibited uses include Single-Family (Detached), all industrial and manufacturing uses, fuel sales. 
 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the property, 
Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 
Direction FLUP    Zoning   Current Land Use 
Site  Auto Urban Commercial    T5-c     Undeveloped 
North            Suburban Commercial T5-c    Undeveloped  
South            Auto Urban Commercial GR                             Retail  
East           TMED    SD-H (TMED)  BS&W Hospital 
West          Auto Urban Commercial T5-c    Retirement Community 

        
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Yes 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should 
be consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks 
Ordinance 

Yes 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 
 
Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The site is designated as Auto Urban Commercial on the Comprehensive Plan’s FLUP; therefore, the 
proposed development complies with the Plan. As part of the Planned Development, a site 
(development) plan (attached) is required to be submitted and reviewed by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 



   
07/02/15 

Item #4(H)  
Consent Agenda 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 S. 31st Street (Major Arterial) – right-of-way width varies from 114’ to 125’, which exceeds the 
City’s minimum standards for the classification (70’) 

 Everton Drive is classified as a Local Street 
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Existing 8-inch water and sanitary sewer lines exists in the south right-of-way of Scott Boulevard.  
Existing 6-inch, 8-inch, and 12-inch water lines exist in the west right-of-way of South 31st.  Water will  
 
be provided through 8-inch water lines.  Sewer will be provided through 8-inch, 10-inch, and 18-inch 
sanitary sewer lines.  Storm sewer drainage will be carried through 18-inch and 24-inch reinforced 
concrete pipes (RCP).   
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
According to Parks and Leisure Services, both required sidewalks (on 31st Street and Scott Blvd.) will 
serve the City’s Citywide Trails Master Plan as part of a pedestrian network.  Provided the trails / 
sidewalks meet the TMED requirements, the walks are seen as sufficient in meeting the Citywide Trails 
Master Plan requirements as well. 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS in the T5-c district are:  
Min Lot Size  N/A    
Min Lot Width 18    
Min. Front   4’  
Max. Front  12’ 
Impervious Cover 80% max 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Fifteen (15) notices for the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were 
sent out to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property.  As of Thursday June 11, 2015 one 
(1) response had been returned in opposition and zero (0) in support of the request.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Zoning Map 
Future Land Use Plan 
Utilities Map 
Site Photo 
Site Plan  
Landscape Plan 
Elevations 
Amenities Plan 
Proposed Signage Example 
Notification Map 
Neighbor Responses 
TMED Regulating Plan 
TMED Regulations Checklist 
Ordinance No 2014-4689 (Shoppes on the Hill Ordinance) 
Ordinance 



Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



Fu
tu

re
 L

an
d

 U
se



U
ti

lit
ie

s



S
it

e 
(l

oo
ki

n
g

 n
or

th
)



R
ev

is
io

ns

DRAWING STATUS S
P

1.
1

CIVIL SITE PLAN

31ST STREET
APARTMENT COMPLEX

NEW SITE DEVELOPMENT

31
S

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

SCOTT BLVD.

EVERTON DRIVE

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

NEW

M
ULTI-F

AM
IL

YN
E

W
M

U
L

T
I-

F
A

M
IL

Y
N

E
W

M
U

L
T

I-
F

A
M

IL
Y

NEW
MULTI-FAMILY

NEW
MULTI-FAMILY

EXISTING HOTEL

EXISTING
BUILDING

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

N
E

W
 C

L
U

B
H

O
U

S
E

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

IO
N

S



16
0

D
AT

E:
 0

6/
09

/1
5

PR
O

JE
C

T 
# 

00
2-

05

N
O

RT
H

0
40

80

SC
A

LE
: 1

” =
 4

0’

31
st

. S
tr

ee
t M

ul
ti-

Fa
m

ily
: G

re
en

sp
ac

e 
Pl

an
Te

m
pl

e,
 Te

xa
s

M
or

ris
 V

en
tu

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s 

IIA
, L

LC
.

B
LD

G
 4

B
LD

G
 5

B
LD

G
 6

B
LD

G
 2

FU
TU

R
E

P
A

N
ER

A
B

R
EA

D
FU

TU
R

E 
R

ET
A

IL

B
LD

G
 3

31
st

 S
TR

EE
T

P
R

IV
A

TE
D

R
IV

E

EVERTON DRIVE

B
LD

G
 1

 C
LU

B

D
O

G
 P

AR
K

ST
RE

ET
 T

RE
E,

 T
YP

.
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 M
O

N
U

M
EN

T 
SI

G
N

 L
O

CA
TI

O
N

ST
RE

ET
 T

RE
E,

 T
YP

.

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

IG
N

LO
CA

TI
O

N

 
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 O
VE

RH
EA

D
 

U
TI

LI
TI

ES

PO
O

L 
AR

EA

PA
RK

IN
G

 L
O

T

PA
RK

IN
G

 T
RE

E,
 T

YP
.



0

SC
AL

E: 30
45

D
AT

E:
04

/1
5/

15

L0
.0

1

31ST ST. APARTMENTS
TEMPLE, TEXAS

LANDSCAPECITYSUBMITTAL PLAN

00
2-

05

L:
\0

02
\0

5\
Ci

ty
 S

ub
m

itt
al

\L
0.

01
.d

w
g 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

Lu
is

 o
n 

 A
pr

 1
5,

  
20

15
 -

 7
:0

8p
m

Be
nk

en
do

rf
er

+
As

so
ci

at
es

, L
LC

Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
5

PR
O

JE
CT

 #

P 
51

2 3
66

 52
59

F 
51

2 3
69

 34
65

90
1  S

ou
th

 M
op

ac
 E

xp
y.

Bu
ild

in
g I

II,
 S

ui
te

40
0

Au
st

in
, T

X
78

74
6

COMMENTS

REVISIONS
DATE

SA

ET

ST

AT
0 1

OF
37

E T
X

0000000000000000000

04/15/15



AS
 S

H
O

W
N

SC
AL

E:

D
AT

E:
04

/1
5/

15

L0
.0

2

31ST ST. APARTMENTS
TEMPLE, TEXAS

 CITY SUBMITTAL NOTES AND SPECIFICATIONS

00
2-

05

L:
\0

02
\0

5\
Ci

ty
 S

ub
m

itt
al

\L
0.

02
.d

w
g 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

Lu
is

 o
n 

 A
pr

 1
5,

  
20

15
 -

 6
:4

4p
m

Be
nk

en
do

rf
er

+
As

so
ci

at
es

, L
LC

Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
5

PR
O

JE
CT

 #

P 
51

2 3
66

 52
59

F 
51

2 3
69

 34
65

90
1  S

ou
th

 M
op

ac
 E

xp
y.

Bu
ild

in
g I

II,
 S

ui
te

40
0

Au
st

in
, T

X
78

74
6

COMMENTS

REVISIONS
DATE

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

AN
D

 S
CR

EE
N

IN
G

 T
AB

U
LA

TI
O

N
S

M
ul

ti
fa

m
ily

 L
an

ds
ca

pi
ng

G
en

er
al

 S
it

e 
La

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

p
g

q

To
ta

l S
it

e 
A

re
a

35
4,

84
5 

S.
F.

B
ui

ld
in

g 
La

nd
sc

ap
in

g
g

p
g

Re
qu

ire
d

q
Pr

ov
id

ed

N
/A

Zo
ni

ng
 T

M
ED

 -
 T

5-
c 

U
rb

an
 C

en
te

r 
Zo

ne

 7
0,

 9
69

 S
.F

. (
20

%
)

+
/-

 1
15

, 0
00

 S
.F

. (
+

/-
 3

3%
)

M
in

im
um

 R
eq

ui
re

d 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

A
re

a

11
8

11
8

To
ta

l S
it

e 
Tr

ee
s

47
2

47
2

To
ta

l S
it

e 
Sh

ru
bs

La
rg

e 
Tr

ee
s

- m
us

t b
e 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f  
th

re
e 

in
ch

es
 (3

")
 in

 d
ia

m
et

er
 a

t b
re

as
t h

ei
gh

t o
r 6

5 
ga

llo
n 

co
nt

ai
ne

r s
ize

 a
t p

la
nt

in
g.

M
ed

iu
m

 T
re

es
 - 

m
us

t b
e 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f  
tw

o 
an

d 
on

e-
ha

lf 
in

ch
es

 (2
 1

/2
")

 in
 d

ia
m

et
er

 a
t b

re
as

t h
ei

gh
t a

t p
la

nt
in

g.

Sm
al

l T
re

es
- m

us
t b

e 
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f  

tw
o 

in
ch

es
 (2

")
 in

 d
ia

m
et

er
 a

t b
re

as
t h

ei
gh

t a
t p

la
nt

in
g 

.

Sh
ru

bs
- m

us
t b

e 
a 

m
in

im
um

 th
re

e-
ga

llo
n 

co
nt

ai
ne

r s
ize

 a
t p

la
nt

in
g.

Gr
ou

nd
co

ve
r-

 m
us

t b
e 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

ne
-g

al
lo

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
r s

ize
 a

t p
la

nt
in

g.

Tr
ee

 m
ix

A 
 m

in
im

um
 o

f (
50

%
) o

f r
eq

ui
re

d 
tr

ee
s m

us
t b

e 
se

le
ct

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

ed
iu

m
 o

r l
ar

ge
 si

ze
 tr

ee
 li

st
.

A 
m

in
im

um
 o

f (
50

%
) o

f r
eq

ui
re

d 
tr

ee
s m

us
t b

e 
ev

er
gr

ee
n 

sp
ec

ie
s.

P
ar

ki
ng

 L
ot

 L
an

ds
ca

pi
ng

g
p

g

Al
l p

ar
ki

ng
 m

us
t b

e 
sc

re
en

ed
 fr

om
 p

ub
lic

 ri
gh

t-
of

-w
ay

 th
ro

ug
h 

on
e 

of
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
et

ho
ds

:
a.

Pl
an

tin
g 

sc
re

en
 o

f e
ve

rg
re

en
 sh

ru
bs

b.
M

as
on

ry
 w

al
l;

c.
Co

m
bi

na
tio

n 
of

 e
ve

rg
re

en
 sh

ru
bs

 a
nd

 b
er

m
; a

nd
d.

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 e

ve
rg

re
en

 sh
ru

bs
 a

nd
 w

al
l

Pl
an

te
d 

sc
re

en
in

g 
m

us
t b

e 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

 so
lid

, o
pa

qu
e 

36
- i

nc
h 

sc
re

en
 w

ith
in

 tw
o 

ye
ar

s
an

d 
m

us
t b

e 
pl

an
te

d 
in

 a
 p

re
pa

re
d 

be
d 

th
at

 is
 a

t l
ea

st
 th

re
e 

fe
et

 in
 w

id
th

.

Pa
rk

in
g 

Is
la

nd
s-

 O
ne

 sm
al

l o
r m

ed
iu

m
 tr

ee
 fr

om
 th

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 p

la
nt

in
g 

lis
t i

s r
eq

ui
re

d 
at

 e
ac

h 
isl

an
d.

P
ub

lic
 F

ro
nt

ag
eg

O
ne

 tr
ee

 p
er

 2
5'

 li
ne

ar
 st

re
et

 fr
on

ta
ge

 is
 re

qu
ire

d.
 T

re
es

 m
us

t b
e 

a 
sin

gl
e 

sp
ec

ie
s s

el
ec

te
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 li
st

.

Tr
ee

s m
us

t b
e 

pl
an

te
d 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f (
3'

) t
hr

ee
 fe

et
 fr

om
 b

ac
k-

of
-c

ur
b.

Tr
ee

 a
nd

 S
hr

ub
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

1 
tr

ee
 a

nd
 4

 s
hr

ub
s 

pe
r 

60
0 

sq
. f

t.
 o

f
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ar
ea

 r
eq

ui
re

d

12
12

P
ub

lic
 F

ro
nt

ag
e 

Tr
ee

s 
(1

 t
re

e 
pe

r 
25

 li
ne

ar
 f

ee
t)

P
ub

lic
 F

ro
nt

ag
e 

P
la

nt
in

g 
A

re
a

g
g

(2
91

 L
.F

./
25

 =
 1

2)

O
ne

 tr
ee

 p
er

 2
5'

 li
ne

ar
 st

re
et

 fr
on

ta
ge

 is
 re

qu
ire

d.
 T

re
es

 m
us

t b
e 

a 
sin

gl
e 

sp
ec

ie
s s

el
ec

te
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 li
st

.

Tr
ee

s m
us

t b
e 

pl
an

te
d 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f (
3'

) t
hr

ee
 fe

et
 fr

om
 b

ac
k-

of
-c

ur
b.

SA

ET

ST

AT
0 1

OF
37

E T
X

0000000000000000000

04/15/15

Ir
ri

ga
ti

on
g

Pe
rm

an
en

t i
rr

ig
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
st

al
le

d 
as

 p
er

 C
ity

 C
od

e 
Ch

ap
te

r 7













10
5 

S
.F

.

30
0 

S
.F

.

P
O

O
L

2,
10

0 
S

.F
.

D
E

C
K

7,
05

5 
S

.F
.

LA
W

N
60

5.
 S

.F
.

F
O

U
N

T
A

IN
10

0.
00

 S
.F

.



B
a

y
l

o
r

 
S

c
o

t
t

 
&

 
W

h
i

t
e

 
M

i
x

e
d

-
U

s
e

 
D

e
v

e
l

o
p

m
e

n
t

D
eve

lop
me

nt
 S

ign
ag

e C
on

cep
ts

Im
ag

es
 a

re
 c

on
ce

pt
ua

l a
nd

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 c

ha
ng

e.
  D

im
en

si
on

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

e 
an

d 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

Ci
ty

 a
pp

ro
va

l .

St
ee

l c
ro

ss
 tu

be
 c

ap

In
te

rn
al

ly
 li

t b
ox

 s
ig

n 
pa

ne
l (

9’
 - 

3”
 x

 3
’ -

 4
”)

St
on

e 
an

d 
pr

ec
as

t b
as

e 
to

 m
at

ch
 a

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e

Ro
ug

h 
lim

es
to

ne
 b

lo
ck

s 
to

 m
at

ch
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

an
d 

re
ta

in
in

g 
w

al
ls

7 - 6” max ht.

12
’-6

”

Co
lu

m
n 

ba
nd

in
g 

to
 m

at
ch

 



S31STST

S
C

O
T

T
B

LV
D

S37THST E
V

E
R

T
O

N
D

R

S39THST

S
W

H
 K

 D
O

D
G

E
N

L
O

O
P

SW
SOUTH

LOOP

SWWESTLOOP

R
A

M
C

O
N

D
R

S
W

E
M

E
R

G
E

N
C

Y
B

LV
D

S
W

H
K

D
O

D
G

E
N

L
O

O
P

24
01

24
0

1

24
01

25
1

0

2
62

5

25
0

5

26
02

17
49

23
02 27

08

26
2

6

23
01

20
02

2
10

3

2
40

1

1
85

0

26
09

2
32

0

26
08

17
4

9

26
74

24
0

8

24
20

14
02

23
04

14
14

26
68

2
05

5 14
20

24
20

21
02

26
0

9

27
01

23
02

13
48

17
2

0

7
02

20
65

20
24

16
16

17
12

20
02

19
01

2
06

7

17
04

19
49

24
11

27
03

15
08

20
18

11
02

10
02

18
2

1
18

08

27
04

15
2

0

26
15

2
22

5
22

26

20
45

21
1

3
21

09
21

17
21

0
5

22
05 22

01

21
06

21
10

22
21

22
0

6

18
21

2
21

7

23
02

22
41

1
71

8

22
21

17
17

22
13

Z
-F

Y
-1

5-
18

P
la

n
n

ed
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

20
0'

 N
o

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 M
ap

25
10

 S
. 3

1s
t S

tr
ee

t

G
IS

 p
ro

du
ct

s 
ar

e 
fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
a

l p
ur

po
se

s 
an

d 
m

ay
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

be
e

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 fo

r 
or

 b
e 

su
ita

bl
e 

fo
r 

le
ga

l, 
e

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 o

r 
su

rv
ey

in
g 

p
u

rp
os

e
s.

  T
he

y 
do

 n
o

t r
e

pr
es

e
nt

 a
n

 o
n-

th
e-

gr
ou

n
d 

su
rv

ey
 a

n
d 

re
p

re
se

n
t o

nl
y 

th
e 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
e 

re
la

tiv
e 

lo
ca

tio
n

 
of

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
bo

un
da

ri
es

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 fe

a
tu

re
s.

C
a

se

20
0'

 B
uf

fe
r

Z
-F

Y
-1

5-
0

6
C

ity
 o

f T
e

m
pl

e 
G

IS
bz

en
dt

0
31

0
62

0
15

5
F

ee
t





1

Brian Chandler

From: Michael Capone <mcapone@seniorcarecentersltc.com>
Sent: Friday, May 22, 2015 9:21 AM
To: Brian Chandler
Subject: Zoning Application Z-FY-15-18

Mr. Chandler:

It is nice to speak to you again we previously worked on Z FY 14 38, if that helps your recollection. For whatever
reason (and I’m not assuming any fault), the Response form for the above referenced Zoning Application was not
received by us until May 18, 2015. As such, please accept this email as the response from Granite Texas Senior Holdings
IV LLC, c/o of the business at 2510 South 31st Street, Temple, TX (collectively, the “Business”). The Business opposes the
proposed Zoning Application and amendment. I would appreciate it if you would confirm that this response will be
included in the packet materials. I will also plan on appearing at the public hearing on the matter.

The Business is Senior Care of Weston Inn (“Weston Inn”), a skilled nursing facility, in several ways, but most important
is the impact it will have on residents. If this rezoning application is approved, residents who have come to Weston Inn
to recover, rehabilitate and receive quality care in their retirement will now be forced to endure all forms of agitation
due to the construction. The construction process and equipment aggravate and infuriate the healthiest and most
understanding of people on a good day; now you are asking our elderly to suffer through this stressful situation for
several months. Unlike most people, who can get in their cars and drive somewhere for a peaceful dinner or for some
form of respite from the noise and construction chaos, most of the residents at the Weston Inn do not have the luxury
to seek this relief from the constant noise, dust and chaos of an active construction site. The impact this will have on the
residents’ health is significant – less ability to rest and sleep means less ability to recover; and increased dust and debris
means greater aggravation to those with asthmatic or respiratory related illnesses. Unfortunately, these concerns are
only the start of the reasons Weston Inn to deny this rezoning application.

There is a reason that most health centers (hospitals, skilled nursing facilities and assisted living facilities) are isolated
away from busy intersections. The increased noise and chaos is not conducive to the health and well being of folks who
are ill. West Inn was placed on the site where it was, in part, because of the layout of its neighbors and the
opportunities for rehabilitation and peace that the zoning laws would allow to its residents. This proposal stands to take
away that tranquility, in the name of profit and urban expansion.

As such, the Business, on its own behalf and on behalf of its many residents who cannot speak for themselves, opposes
this Application.

Thank you,

Mike

Michael R. Capone
General Counsel

Senior Care Centers
600 N Pearl St. Suite 1100
Dallas TX 75201
Office: (214) 252 7771
Facsimile: (214) 252 7772
www.seniorcarecentersltc.com





TM
ED

St
an
da
rd
sC

he
ck
lis
t

Co
de

Se
ct
io
n

#
Co

de
St
an

da
rd

Ye
s/
N
o

Pr
op

os
ed

St
an

da
rd

Re
as
on

fo
rn

ot
m
ee
tin

g
TM

ED
St
an

da
rd

St
af
fR

ev
ie
w
Co

m
m
en

ts

1
Do

es
th
e
pr
oj
ec
tm

ee
td

im
en

sio
na
la
nd

se
tb
ac
k
re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
?

Ye
s

2
Do

es
th
e
pr
oj
ec
tm

ee
tb

ui
ld
in
g
co
nf
ig
ur
at
io
n
re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
?

N
o

M
in
im

um
St
or
y
He

ig
ht
=1
0'
6"

M
in
.

Bu
ild
in
g
He

ig
ht

=
Si
ng
le
St
or
y
fo
rC

lu
b

W
ha
ts
to
ry

he
ig
ht

is
pr
op

os
ed

?

3
Is
th
e
us
e
al
lo
w
ed

in
th
e
di
st
ric
tp

er
ta
bl
e
6.
3.
6D

?
Ye
s

Ye
s,
bu

ts
ub

je
ct
to

"L
im

ita
tio

ns
"

4
Do

es
th
e
us
e
ca
rr
y
an

“L
”
de

sig
na
tio

n
pe

rt
ab
le
6.
3.
6
D?

If
so
,s
pe

ci
fic

us
e

st
an
da
rd
sa

pp
ly
.

Ye
s

Th
e
"L
"r
ef
er
st
o
no

ta
llo
w
in
g
ap
ar
tm

en
ts

on
th
e
gr
ou

nd
flo

or
if
fr
on

tin
g
an

ar
te
ria

l
or

co
lle
ct
or

(3
1s
ti
sa

n
ar
te
ria

l,
th
er
ef
or
e,

re
qu

iri
ng

an
ex
ce
pt
io
n)

5
Do

es
th
e
pr
oj
ec
tm

ee
ta

ll
sp
ec
ifi
c
us
e
st
an
da
rd
s?

6.
3.
6
E

N
o

Ex
cl
ud

e
St
an
da
rd
s6

.3
.6
E1

&
6.
3.
6E
6,

Bu
ild
in
gs

w
ill
Ex
ce
ed

10
,0
00

SF
Gr
os
s

Ar
ea

O
ve
rh
ea
d
Do

or
sw

ill
be

us
ed

at
ga
ra
ge
s

6
Is
an
y
ou

td
oo

rs
to
ra
ge

pr
op

os
ed

?
O
ut
do

or
st
or
ag
e
no

tp
er
m
itt
ed

in
TM

ED
.

6.
3.
6
G

N
o

7
O
ut
do

or
sa
le
an
d
di
sp
la
y
of

co
m
m
od

iti
es

no
ta

llo
w
ed

in
tr
an
se
ct
zo
ne

or
Sp
ec
ia
l

Di
st
ric
tw

he
re

su
ch

sa
le
is
no

ta
n
al
lo
w
ed

us
e.
6.
3.
6
H

N
/A

8
If
pe

rm
itt
ed

,d
oe

st
em

po
ra
ry

ou
td
oo

rd
isp

la
y
fo
ra

sid
ew

al
k
sa
le
no

te
xt
en

d
m
or
e
th
an

5’
fr
om

fr
on

tf
aç
ad
e
an
d
re
se
rv
es

5’
of

pe
de

st
ria

n
w
al
kw

ay
?
6.
3.
6
H

N
/A

9
Do

es
th
e
pr
oj
ec
tm

ee
tT

ho
ro
ug
hf
ar
e
St
an
da
rd
s?

6.
3.
7
B

N
/A

N
o
N
ew

Th
or
ou

gh
fa
re
s

10
Do

es
th
e
pr
oj
ec
tm

ee
tB

lo
ck

Pe
rim

et
er

St
an
da
rd
s?

6.
3.
7C

(N
ot

ap
pl
ic
ab
le
to

SD
)

N
/A

N
o
N
ew

St
re
et
s

11
Do

es
th
e
pr
oj
ec
tm

ee
ta

cc
es
sa

nd
co
nn

ec
tiv

ity
st
an
da
rd
sr
el
at
ed

to
dr
iv
ew

ay
sp
ac
in
g
an
d
co
nn

ec
tio

n
re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
?
6.
3.
7
D1

(N
ot

ap
pl
ic
ab
le
to

SD
)

Ye
s

12
If
pr
oj
ec
ti
sl
oc
at
ed

in
T5

e
di
st
ric
to

n
Fi
rs
tS

tr
ee
td

o
dr
iv
ew

ay
cu
ts
m
ee
tt
he

m
in
im

um
re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
?
6.
3.
7D

2
N
/A

13
Do

es
th
e
pr
oj
ec
tm

ee
tt
he

m
in
im

um
pa
rk
in
g
ra
tio

sa
nd

pa
rk
in
g
sp
ac
e
di
m
en

sio
ns

re
qu

ire
d?

6.
3.
8B

C
Ye
s

Pr
op

os
in
g
so
m
ew

he
re

be
tw

ee
n
th
e
.7
5

an
d
1.
0
ra
tio

sr
eq

ui
re
d
by

TM
ED

an
d

ge
ne

ra
lp
ar
ki
ng

st
an
da
rd
s,
re
sp
ec
tiv

el
y

14
Is
of
fs
tr
ee
tl
oa
di
ng

pr
op

os
ed

?
Do

es
lo
ca
tio

n
m
ee
tr
eq

ui
re
m
en

ts
?
6.
3.
8E

(N
ot

ap
pl
ic
ab
le
to

SD
)

N
/A

15
Do

es
pa
rk
in
g
m
ee
tg

en
er
al
lo
ca
tio

n
an
d
us
e
st
an
da
rd
s?

6.
3.
8G

N
o

Ex
cl
ud

e
St
an
da
rd
s6

.3
.8
G3

&
6.
3.
8G

4
N
o
re
ar

al
le
ys

ar
e
pr
ov
id
ed

W
he

n
no

al
le
ys

ar
e
pr
op

os
ed

,r
ig
ht

of
w
ay

de
di
ca
tio

n
is
re
qu

ire
d
(a
pp

ea
rs
to

re
qu

ire
an

ex
ce
pt
io
n)

16
Do

es
pa
rk
in
g
lo
ca
te
d
in
T5

e
on

Fi
rs
tS

tr
ee
tm

ee
ts
pe

ci
al
re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
?
6.
3.
8H

N
/A

17
Is
on

st
re
et

pa
rk
in
g
al
lo
w
ed

an
d
in
co
nf
or
m
an
ce

w
ith

lo
ca
tio

n
an
d
co
nf
ig
ur
at
io
n

st
an
da
rd
s?

6.
3.
8I

N
/A

N
o
O
n
St
re
et

Pa
rk
in
g

18
Is
lo
ca
tio

n
an
d
pl
ac
em

en
to

fb
ik
e
fa
ci
lit
ie
si
n
ac
co
rd
an
ce

w
ith

st
an
da
rd
s?

6.
3.
9
B

Ye
s

Bi
ke

Fa
ci
lit
ie
sw

ill
be

m
et

bu
tL
oc
at
io
ns

ha
ve

no
t b

ee
n
de

te
rm

in
ed

19
Ar
e
m
in
im

um
re
qu

ire
d
bi
cy
cl
e
ra
ck
sp

ro
vi
de

d?
6.
3.
9
B

Ye
s

Bi
ke

Fa
ci
lit
ie
sw

ill
be

m
et

bu
tL
oc
at
io
ns

ha
ve

no
tb

ee
n
de

te
rm

in
ed

20
Is
th
e
pr
oj
ec
ti
n
a
tr
an
se
ct
zo
ne

?
If
so

th
en

al
lp
riv

at
e
pa
rk
in
g
la
nd

sc
ap
e

st
an
da
rd
sa

pp
ly
6.
3.
10
A

Ye
s

21
Do

es
pr
oj
ec
tp

ro
vi
de

m
in
im

um
sit
e
la
nd

sc
ap
in
g
fo
rt
ra
ns
ec
tz
on

es
pe

rt
ab
le

6.
3.
10

B?
Ye
s

U
se

St
an

da
rd
s:
U
DC

6.
3.
6

Ci
rc
ul
at
io
n:

U
DC

6.
3.
7

Pa
rk
in
g
&
Lo
ad

in
g
St
an

da
rd
s:

U
DC

6.
3.
8

Bi
ke

Fa
ci
lit
ie
s:
U
DC

6.
3.
9



TM
ED

St
an
da
rd
sC

he
ck
lis
t

22
Ar
e
pr
op

os
ed

tr
ee
ss
el
ec
te
d
fr
om

ap
pr
ov
ed

lis
ta

nd
m
ee
tt
re
e
m
ix

re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
?
6.
3.
10

C
Ye
s

23
Ar
e
pa
rk
in
g
lo
tl
an
ds
ca
pi
ng

an
d
sc
re
en

in
g
re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
m
et
?
6.
3.
10

D
E

N
o

O
ne

La
nd

sc
ap
e
Is
la
nd

ev
er
y
12

Sp
ac
es

Co
ns
ist
en

cy
w
ith

Ph
as
e
1

24
Ha

sm
ec
ha
ni
ca
le
qu

ip
m
en

tb
ee
n
sc
re
en

ed
ac
co
rd
in
g
to

st
an
da
rd
s?

6.
3.
10

F
Ye
s

Sc
re
en

in
g
w
ill
be

m
et

bu
tL
oc
at
io
ns

ha
ve

no
tb

ee
n
de

te
rm

in
ed

25
Ha

ve
w
as
te

co
nt
ai
ne

rs
be

en
sc
re
en

ed
ac
co
rd
in
g
to

st
an
da
rd
s?

6.
3.
10

G
Ye
s

26
Ha

ve
lo
ad
in
g
do

ck
sb

ee
n
sc
re
en

ed
ac
co
rd
in
g
to

st
an
da
rd
s?

6.
3.
10

H
N
/A

N
o
Lo
ad
in
g
Do

ck
s

27
Do

al
lp
ro
po

se
d
fe
nc
es

an
d
w
al
ls
m
ee
tm

in
im

um
st
an
da
rd
s?

6.
3.
10

IA
dd

iti
on

al
st
an
da
rd
sf
or
:n

on
re
sid

en
tia

l/m
ul
tif
am

ily
6.
3.
10

J,
fo
rs
in
gl
e
fa
m
ily

us
es

6.
3.
10

K
Ye
s

28
Do

es
th
e
pr
oj
ec
tm

ee
tT

M
ED

De
sig

n
Cr
ite

ria
M
an
ua
ls
ta
nd

ar
ds

fo
rp

ub
lic

fr
on

ta
ge
?
6.
3.
11

B
N
o

Co
ns
ist
en

cy
w
ith

Ph
as
e
1?

29
Is
cu
rb

an
d
gu
tt
er

pr
ov
id
ed

?
6.
3.
11
B

Ye
s

30
W
hi
ch

fr
on

ta
ge

ty
pe

st
an
da
rd
sa

re
ap
pl
ic
ab
le
fo
rt
he

st
re
et
?
6.
3.
11
C

Ty
pe

D
31

Do
es

th
e
fr
on

ta
ge

de
pt
h,
pl
an
tin

g
st
rip

,o
n
st
re
et

pa
rk
in
g
an
d
sid

ew
al
ks

w
id
th

m
ee
tr
eq

ui
re
m
en

ts
se
tf
or
th

in
Se
c.
6.
3.
11

B5
?

N
o

Ex
ist
in
g
8'
Si
de

w
al
k

32
Is
th
e
tr
ee

ty
pe

,s
pa
ci
ng
,l
oc
at
io
n,
an
d
pl
ac
em

en
ti
n
ac
co
rd
an
ce

w
ith

re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
?
6.
3.
11

D
Ye
s

Do
es

no
tc
om

pl
y
w
ith

Co
de

fo
rl
oc
at
io
n

of
th
e
tr
ee
s,
sin

ce
TM

ED
re
qu

ire
st
he

pl
an
tin

g
st
rip

to
be

be
tw

ee
n
cu
rb

an
d

sid
ew

al
k
bu

te
xi
st
in
g
sid

ew
al
k
is
lo
ca
te
d

at
th
e
cu
rb

33
Ha

sg
ro
un

dc
ov
er

be
en

pr
ov
id
ed

in
pl
an
tin

g
st
rip

in
ac
co
rd
an
ce

w
ith

re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
?
6.
3.
11
D.
2

Ye
s

34
Do

pu
bl
ic
fr
on

ta
ge

sid
ew

al
ks

m
ee
tc
on

st
ru
ct
io
n,
co
nn

ec
tiv

ity
,a
nd

lo
ca
tio

n
re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
?
6.
3.
11
D.
2

Ye
s

Ye
s,
sin

ce
th
er
e'
sa

n
8'
sid

ew
al
k
al
on

g
S.

31
st
St
re
et

35
Do

es
th
e
pu

bl
ic
fr
on

ta
ge

pr
ov
id
e
th
e
re
qu

ire
d
pe

de
st
ria

n
am

en
iti
es
?
6.
3.
11
D.
2

Ye
s

36
Ty
pe

E
Pu

bl
ic
Fr
on

ta
ge

ap
pl
y?

6.
3.
11

.D
.2
.b

Ye
s

Ap
pl
ie
sa

lo
ng

Ev
er
to
n
fr
on

ta
ge
:f
ill
ed

w
ith

ap
pr
ov
ed

gr
ou

nd
co
ve
r o

rs
od

37
Do

sid
ew

al
ks

ex
te
nd

th
e
en

tir
e
le
ng
th

of
th
e
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t's

fr
on

ta
ge

on
a
pu

bl
ic

st
re
et
?
6.
3.
11
.E
.1

Ye
s

W
ill
ad
d
a
sid

ew
al
k
al
on

g
Ev
er
to
n

38
Do

sid
ew

al
ks

co
nn

ec
tt
o
ex
ist
in
g
ad
ja
ce
nt

sid
ew

al
ks
?
6.
3.
11

.E
.3

Ye
s

N
ee
d
to

ad
d
a
sid

ew
al
k
al
on

g
Ev
er
to
n
to

co
nn

ec
tt
o
S.
31

st
St
re
et

sid
ew

al
k

39
Do

sid
ew

al
ks

co
nn

ec
tt
o
pa
rk
in
g
w
ith

in
th
e
lo
t a

nd
to

pr
im

ar
y
en

tr
an
ce
so

fe
ac
h

re
sid

en
tia

lb
ui
ld
in
g?

6.
3.
11
.E
. 5

Ye
s

40
Do

sid
ew

al
ks

al
so

co
nn

ec
tt
he

pr
in
ci
pa
lb
ui
ld
in
g
en

tr
an
ce
st
o
al
la
ss
oc
ia
te
d

ou
td
oo

ra
m
en

iti
es
?
6.
3.
11
.E
. 6

Ye
s

41
Do

sid
ew

al
ks

co
nn

ec
tt
he

pr
im

ar
y
en

tr
an
ce

of
th
e
re
sid

en
ce

to
th
e
pe

rim
et
er

st
re
et

sid
ew

al
k
sy
st
em

?
6.
3.
11
.E
. 7

Ye
s

42
Is
a
Hi
ke

an
d
Bi
ke

Tr
ai
ld
ed

ic
at
io
n
re
qu

ire
d
fo
ri
m
pl
em

en
ta
tio

n
of

Ci
ty
w
id
e
Tr
ai
ls

M
as
te
rP

la
n?

6.
3.
11

G
N
o

43
Ar
e
th
e
pr
op

os
ed

tr
ee
ss
el
ec
te
d
fr
om

th
e
ap
pr
ov
ed

tr
ee

lis
t?

6.
3.
12
.B

(S
ee

Te
m
pl
e
Dr
ou

gh
tT

ol
er
an
tT

re
e
Se
le
ct
io
n
Gu

id
e )

Ye
s

44
Is
th
e
pr
op

os
ed

gr
ou

nd
co
ve
rf
ro
m

th
e
ap
pr
ov
ed

gr
ou

nd
co
ve
rl
ist
?
6.
3.
12

.C
Ye
s

Pe
rS

ec
.6
.3
.1
1.
D.
2a
.1
gr
ou

nd
co
ve
r

sh
ou

ld
be

pr
ov
id
ed

45
Ar
e
th
e
pr
op

os
ed

sh
ru
bs

ap
pr
op

ria
te

pe
re
nn

ia
la
nd

ev
er
gr
ee
n
sp
ec
ie
sf
or

th
e

Ce
nt
ra
lT
ex
as

Re
gi
on

?
6.
3.
12
.D

Ye
s

46
Is
al
ll
an
ds
ca
pe

in
st
al
la
tio

n,
m
ai
nt
en

an
ce
,a
nd

irr
ig
at
io
n
pr
ov
id
ed

pe
rs
ta
nd

ar
ds
?

6.
3.
12

E
Ye
s

47
Do

sh
ru
bs

an
d
gr
ou

nd
co
ve
r m

ee
tm

in
im

um
siz

e
re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
6.
3.
12

E
Ye
s

Pu
bl
ic
Fr
on

ta
ge

St
an

da
rd
s:
U
DC

6.
3.
11

Pr
iv
at
e
Pr
op

er
ty

La
nd

sc
ap

e
St
an

da
rd
s:
U
DC

6.
3.
10



TM
ED

St
an
da
rd
sC

he
ck
lis
t

48
Is
la
w
n
gr
as
sd

ro
ug
ht

re
sis
ta
nt

an
d
do

es
it
m
ee
ti
ns
ta
lla
tio

n
re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
?

6.
3.
12

E
Ye
s

49
Ha

sa
n
irr
ig
at
io
n
pl
an

be
en

pr
ep

ar
ed

?
6.
4.
12

E
Ye
s

Irr
ig
at
io
n
Sy
st
em

w
ill
be

pr
ov
id
ed

bu
th

as
no

ty
et

be
en

pr
ep

ar
ed

W
ill
co
m
pl
y,
th
er
ef
or
e,
do

n'
tn

ee
d
to

in
cl
ud

e
th
is
as

an
ex
ce
pt
io
n

50
Do

th
e
pr
op

os
ed

ex
te
rio

rf
in
ish

m
at
er
ia
ls
m
ee
tc
ity

m
at
er
ia
ls
ta
nd

ar
ds
?
6.
3.
13

Ye
s

51
Do

ex
te
rio

rf
in
ish

m
at
er
ia
ls
m
ee
tm

in
im

um
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
?
6.
3.
13

B
Ye
s

52
Is
th
e
ac
ce
nt

m
at
er
ia
ln
o
m
or
e
th
an

20
%
an
d
is
it
fr
om

th
e
pe

rm
itt
ed

lis
t?

6.
3.
13

C
Ye
s

53
Is
th
e
bu

ild
in
g
de

sig
ne

d
in
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e
w
ith

re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
in
ta
bl
e
6.
3.
13

D?
(N
ot

ap
pl
ic
ab
le
to

SD
)

N
o

Ro
of

Pi
tc
h
is
4:
12

To
w
er
sa

re
us
ed

to
cr
ea
te

ro
of

ar
tic
ul
at
io
n

5:
12

is
re
qu

ire
d

54
Do

es
th
e
pa
rk
in
g
an
d
pr
op

os
ed

ga
ra
ge

m
ee
ts
ta
nd

ar
ds
?
6.
3.
14

(N
ot

ap
pl
ic
ab
le
to

SD
)

N
o

1
Ga

ra
ge

pe
r3

.5
U
ni
ts

1
ga
ra
ge

pe
r2

un
its

re
qu

ire
d

55
Ar
e
th
er
e
pr
iv
at
e
pr
op

er
ty
co
m
m
on

ar
ea
sa

nd
do

th
ey

m
ee
ts
ta
nd

ar
ds

6.
3.
15

A
E

(N
ot

ap
pl
ic
ab
le
to

SD
or

to
sin

gl
e
fa
m
ily

de
ta
ch
ed

/a
tt
ac
he

d
re
sid

en
tia

l u
se
si
n
T4

or
T5
)

M
ay
be

Co
m
pl
ia
nc
e
no

ty
et

co
nf
irm

ed
at

th
is

st
ag
e
of

de
sig

n
Ap

pl
ic
an
tp

ro
po

se
sa

po
ol
,c
lu
bh

ou
se
,

gr
ee
n
sp
ac
e
an
d
a
do

g
pa
rk

bu
tc
an
no

t
co
nf
irm

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e
w
ith

de
ta
ile
d
TM

ED
st
an
da
rd
sa

tt
hi
ss
ta
ge

of
de

sig
n

56
Ar
e
th
e
pr
op

os
ed

st
re
et

lig
ht
sd

es
ig
ne

d
an
d
in
st
al
le
d
on

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e
w
ith

th
e

Ci
ty
’s
St
re
et

Li
gh
tP

ol
ic
y?

6.
3.
17

Ye
s

57
Ar
e
al
lp
ro
po

se
d
ne

w
el
ec
tr
ic
,t
el
ep

ho
ne

,a
nd

ca
bl
e
w
ire

sa
lo
ng

th
e
pu

bl
ic
st
re
et

RO
W

un
de

rg
ro
un

d?
6.
3.
1 8

Ye
s

58
Is
th
e
sig

n
ty
pe

pe
rm

itt
ed

?
6.
3.
16

B
(N
ot

ap
pl
ic
ab
le
to

SD
r)

Ye
s

M
on

um
en

ts
ig
ns

al
lo
w
ed

w
ith

a
W
ar
ra
nt

59
Do

es
th
e
pr
op

os
ed

sig
n
ty
pe

m
ee
ts
ta
nd

ar
ds
?
6.
3.
16

C
N
o

Re
qu

es
tt
o
ex
ce
ed

6'
he

ig
ht

fo
r

m
on

um
en

ts
ig
na
ge

to
al
lo
w
fo
r

ar
ch
ite

ct
ur
al

el
em

en
t s

 =
Co

nf
irm

ed
ex
ce
pt
io
n

Ge
ne

ra
lP
la
nt
in
g:
U
DC

6.
3.
12

Ar
ch
ite

ct
ur
al
,P

ar
ki
ng
,S
tr
ee
t

Li
gh
ts
&
U
til
iti
es
:U

DC
6.
3.
13

,1
4,

17
an

d
18

Si
gn

St
an

da
rd
s:
U
DC

6.
3.
16









1

ORDINANCE NO.

(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-15-18)

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4689, AND THE 
CORRESPONDING SITE PLAN, TO ADD A PROPOSED APARTMENT 
COMPLEX PROJECT IN THE SHOPPES ON THE HILL SUBDIVISION, 
LOCATED AT 2510 SOUTH 31ST STREET; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE.

______________________________________________________________________

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS,
THAT:

Part 1: The City Council amends Ordinance No. 2014-4689, and the corresponding 
site plan, to add a proposed apartment complex project in the Shoppes on the Hill 
Subdivision, located at 2510 South 31st Street, as outlined in the map attached hereto as 
Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes.

Part 2: The City Council approves amending Ordinance No. 2014-4689 subject to 
the following conditions:

1. Building story height (14’ required: 10’ 6” proposed);
2. Uses are limited to a maximum gross floor area of 10,000 square feet 

(apartment units proposed within 5 different buildings that exceed the 
10,000 square feet limitation);

3. Overhead doors are prohibited (proposed garages include overhead 
doors);

4. Allowing residential on the ground floor (T5-c prohibits apartments 
on 1st floor);

5. Alleys are not proposed (T5-c requires alleys);
6. Constructing a 6’ sidewalk and 6’ planting strip along Everton to the 

back-of-curb (4’ sidewalk to the back-of-curb is proposed due to 
right-of-way and utility constraints);

7. Applicant has agreed to provide a 6’ planting strip behind the 4’ 
sidewalk where not in conflict with utilities; 

8. Roof pitch (5:12 required: 4:12 proposed);
9. Number of garage parking spaces (1 per 2 units required: 1 per 3.5 

units proposed); 
10. Garages are not permitted to front onto Public Right-of-Way (some 

garages are proposed to face S. 31st Street);
11. Approximately 20,500 sf of Common Area is required; Applicant 

proposes at least 11,860 sf of Common Area: pool (2,100 sf); deck 
(7,055 sf); lawn (605 sf); additional green space north of pool (2,000 
sf) and a fountain (100 sf); An estimated 8,000 sf dog park within the 
stormwater detention area is proposed but not included in the 
calculations;



2

12. Monument Signs may be approved by Warrant only;
13. Sign Height (6’ max monument sign requirements: propose a max 

height of 7’ 6” to top of sign face to accommodate architectural 
design elements that may extend above 7’ 6” and to accommodate 
grade changes).

Part 3: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map.

Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if 
any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared 
invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or 
sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 
or section.

Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained.

Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act.

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 18th day of
June, 2015.

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 2nd day of July, 2015.

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS

____________________________
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros
City Secretary City Attorney



   

 
 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM   

 

07/02/15 
Item #4(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Jonathan Graham, City Manager 
Traci Barnard, Director of Finance 
 
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution setting the date, time and place of public 
hearings on the proposed FY 2015-2016 Budget for August 6, 2015 and August 27, 2015 at 5:00 p.m. 
in the City Council Chambers. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  This proposed resolution will comply with the City Charter requirement that the date, 
time and place of the public hearing on the proposed budget be set at the first regular Council meeting 
after the budget is filed.  The public hearing is scheduled for the August 6, 2015 Regular Council 
meeting, to be held at 5:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, to receive citizen comments on the operating 
budget.  The resolution will also indicate that a supplemental public hearing on the proposed budget 
will be conducted at the August 27, 2015 Special Council meeting, just prior to the scheduled adoption 
of the budget. 
 
Additional public hearings for the FY 2015-2016 Proposed Budget may be scheduled relating to 
statutory requirements for adoption of a tax rate. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
 
 
 

 

 



 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, SETTING THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE OF THE PUBLIC 
HEARINGS ON THE PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 BUDGET FOR 
AUGUST 6, 2015 AND AUGUST 27, 2015, AT 5:00 P.M. IN THE CITY 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS; DIRECTING THE CITY SECRETARY TO 
PUBLISH NOTICE SETTING FORTH THE TIME AND PLACE THEREOF; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, compliance with the City Charter directs that the date, time and place of the 
public hearings on the proposed budget be set at the first regular City Council meeting after the 
annual budget is filed; 
 

Whereas, the public hearings shall be scheduled for August 6, 2015 and August 27, 2015 
at 5:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers located in the Municipal Building at 2 North Main 
Street, Temple, Bell County, Texas; 
 

Whereas, a supplemental public hearing on the proposed budget will be conducted at the 
August 27, 2015 Special Council meeting, just prior to the scheduled adoption of the budget; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council directs that public hearings on the City of Temple’s  Fiscal 
Year 2015-2016 budget be held at meetings of the City Council at 5:00 p.m. on August 6, 2015, 
and August 27, 2015, in the City Council Chambers located in the Municipal Building at 2 North 
Main Street, Temple, Bell County, Texas. 
 

Part 2: The City Council directs the City Secretary to cause the publication of notice of 
said hearings setting forth the time and place thereof in a newspaper of general circulation within 
the City. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of July, 2015. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              
       DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

07/02/15 
Item #4(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Traci Barnard, Director of Finance 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal year 
2014-2015. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: This item is to recommend various budget amendments, based on the adopted 
FY 2014-2015 budget. The amendments will involve transfers of funds between contingency 
accounts, department and fund levels. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The total amount of budget amendments is $56,130. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Budget Amendments 
Resolution 



CITY OF TEMPLE

BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2015 BUDGET

July 2, 2015

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

260-6100-571-6532 Capital - Special Projects / Contingency/Cont Fund Balance 45,755$         
260-6100-571-6315 100623 Capital Building & Ground / Sidewalk/Curb/Gutter 45,755$         

To transfer the unexpended balance from the CDBG 1st Street Sidewalk project to
the Contingency Fund to be re-programmed to other CDBG projects.

110-1800-525-2120 Supplies / Education/Recreation 1,375$           
110-0000-452-0459 Administrative Fees / Misc. Court Fees 1,375$           

To appropriate revenue and expenditure related to the purchase of 25 theft program
"pass codes" for the self funded juvenile theft prevention program.

240-4400-551-2630 Contracted Services / Banking Service Fees 500$              
240-4400-551-2721 Cost of Goods Sold / Food Products 8,500$           
240-4400-551-2111 Supplies / Computer Supplies 500$              
240-0000-445-1063 Civic Center / Food Sales 8,500$           

To allocate additional funding to cover banking service fees and food products.  The
additional allocation is needed due to the increased bookings and services this fiscal
year being utilized by our on-site catering services.  The majority of the funding will be 
from revenue received in Food Sales.

TOTAL AMENDMENTS 56,130$         56,130$         

GENERAL FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$               
Added to Contingency Sweep Account - 
Carry forward from Prior Year - 
Taken From Contingency - 
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$  

Beginning Judgments & Damages Contingency 40,070$         
Added to Contingency Judgments & Damages from Council Contingency - 
Taken From Judgments & Damages - 
Net Balance of Judgments & Damages Contingency Account 40,070$         

Beginning Compensation Contingency 988,000$       
Added to Compensation Contingency - 
Taken From Compensation Contingency (979,440)        
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 8,560$           

Net Balance Council Contingency 48,630$         

Beginning Balance Budget Sweep Contingency -$               
Added to Budget Sweep Contingency - 
Taken From Budget Sweep - 
Net Balance of Budget Sweep Contingency Account -$  

WATER & SEWER FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 50,000$         
Added to Contingency Sweep Account - 
Taken From Contingency (21,098)          
Net Balance of Contingency Account 28,902$         

Beginning Compensation Contingency 168,000$       
Added to Compensation Contingency - 
Taken From Compensation Contingency (166,588)        
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 1,412$           

Net Balance Water & Sewer Fund Contingency 30,314$         

1



CITY OF TEMPLE

BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2015 BUDGET

July 2, 2015

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 27,903$         
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                 
Carry forward from Prior Year -                 
Taken From Contingency (21,158)          
Net Balance of Contingency Account 6,745$           

Beginning Compensation Contingency 36,000$         
Added to Compensation Contingency -                 
Taken From Compensation Contingency (35,330)          
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 670$              

Net Balance Hotel/Motel Tax Fund Contingency 7,415$           

DRAINAGE FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$               
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                 
Carry forward from Prior Year -                 
Taken From Contingency -                 
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$               

Beginning Compensation Contingency 26,000$         
Added to Compensation Contingency -                 
Taken From Compensation Contingency (26,000)          
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account -$                   

Net Balance Drainage Fund Contingency -$               

FED/STATE GRANT FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$               
Carry forward from Prior Year 89,040           
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                 
Taken From Contingency (74,763)          

Net Balance of Contingency Account 14,277$         

2



RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, APPROVING BUDGET AMENDMENTS TO THE 
2014-2015 CITY BUDGET; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

________________________________________________________________ 

Whereas, on the 28th day of August, 2014, the City Council approved a budget 
for the 2014-2015 fiscal year; and 

Whereas, the City Council deems it in the public interest to make certain 
amendments to the 2014-2015 City Budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1:  The City Council approves amending the 2014-2015 City Budget by 
adopting the budget amendments which are more fully described in Exhibit ‘A,’ 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of July, 2015. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary City Attorney 



   

 

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM   

 

07/02/15 
Item #5  

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW  
Brian Chandler Planning Director,  
Beverly Zendt Assistant Planning Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION P-FY-15-22: Consider adopting a resolution on the Westfield Master Preliminary 
Plat, an approximately 224.54 acre tract, situated in the Baldwin Robertson Survey, Abstract No. 17 
and in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, both in Bell County, Texas, located on the north of 
West Adams Avenue, east side of North Pea Ridge Road, and south of Prairie View Road with an 
exception to Unified Development Code (UDC) Section 8.3: Park Land Dedication. 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its May 18, 2015 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 8 to 0 to recommend approval of the Westfield Master Preliminary 
Plat and the exception to UDC Section 8.3 Park Land Dedication. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Westfield Master Preliminary Plat 
and the exception to UDC Section 8.3 Park land Dedication. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Synopsis. 
Approval of this item will result in preliminary approval of 749 new residential, retail, and mixed use lots. 
The applicant will still be required to apply for approval of a final plat for all phases and sections per 
Section 3.6.6 of the UDC and state law. Approval of this item will also permit an exception to Section 
8.3 requiring the dedication of land for city park purposes. 
 
Background. 
The Development Review Committee reviewed the Westfield Master Preliminary Plat and deemed this 
plat complete on May 15, 2015. 
 
The applicant has submitted a preliminary plat for a =/- 224 acres including multiple tract site bordered 
by North Pea Ridge Road, Prairie View Road, Stonehollow Drive, Westfield Boulevard, and Hilliard 
Road. The applicant is proposing a design concept that will involve the integration of a mix of zonings 
and uses to create a unique planned community where residents can live, shop and play accessing 
amenities and shopping by means of a connected trail/sidewalk system. The Westfield Master Planned 
Development Zoning request is being considered in tandem with this plat request.  

 



   
 
 

07/02/15 
Item #5  

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 
The following roads have been identified in the Future Thoroughfare Plan Map and have been identified 
on the corresponding preliminary plat where additional right-of way has been requested where needed.  
 

 Stonehollow Drive- Proposed Collector 
 N. Pea Ridge Road- Proposed Collector 
 Prairie View Road-Proposed Minor Arterial 
 Westfield Blvd- Proposed Minor Arterial  

 
A Local Connector has been identified along Stonehollow Drive and a Community-Wide Connector has 
been identified along Westfield Boulevard. A Local Connector should be 6’-8’wide and a Community-
Wide Collector should be 8—10’ wide.  A note has been provided on the plat indicating that sidewalks 
will be place on Stonehollow Drive, N. Pea Ridge Road, Prairie View Road, and Westfield Blvd. A 
minimum 4’ sidewalk is required on collector roads and a 6’ sidewalks is required along arterials.  
 
The applicant will likely seek an exception to the provision of a sidewalk on N. Pea Ridge Road 
with the final plat in anticipation of a city-initiated reconstruction of that local collector.  
 
Sanitary sewer is available to the subject property through multiple existing 8” sewer lines provided 
along Stonehollow Drive, Prairie Lark Drive and along the south property boundary. Multiple water lines 
area available on the north south, east and west boundaries.    
 
Exception Request: The applicant has requested an exception to Article 8: Subdivision Design and 
Improvements; Section 8.3.1 Requirements for Park Land Dedication.  
 
1. The exception is to allow these private parks to serve this development and to allow consideration 

for the pedestrian linkages that are being provided to the anticipated 350 acre Crossroads Park 
located to the northeast of the subdivision. 

2. The developer has stated that approximately 7.3 acres of parkland will be provided and maintained 
by the HOA and has planned various amenities within the parkland framework of pocket parks and 
linkages. 

3. The approximate seven acres will serve the number of single family dwellings shown in this 
preliminary master with a surplus acreage to serve approximately 175 multi-family dwellings. If more 
multi-family is proposed in the future than the surplus will serve, this may be addressed prior to 
multi-family development. 

 
Section 3.6.7 of the Unified Development Code states: 
 
3.6.7B The City Council may approve, approve with conditions or deny the request after consideration 
of the following factors: 

1. That there are special circumstances or conditions affecting the land involved such that the strict 
application of the provisions of Error! Reference source not found.would have a substantial 
adverse impact on the applicant's reasonable use of the land; 

2. That the granting of the exception will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, 
or injurious to other property in the area; and 



   
 

07/02/15 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

 
3. That the granting of the exception will not have the effect of preventing the orderly subdividing 

of other land in the area in accordance with the provisions of this Section. 
 
The applicant has indicated that the presence of the anticipated 350 acre Crossroads Community Park 
to the north and related pedestrian amenities and connections located within the development will 
provide substantial open space and recreational opportunities for area residents. The applicant further 
references an additional 11.2 acres of open space provided in the form of a significant drainage feature 
and associated trail amenity.  
 
Parks and Recreation Department Staff has reviewed the applicant’s proposal and recommends 
approval providing that, with the introduction of additional multi-family dwelling units, that the dedication 
requirements will be revisited.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Final Plat 
Topo/Utility Plan 
Parks and Open Space Plan  
Exception Request Letter 
Resolution  











1 
 

 
 RESOLUTION NO.     

 
(PLANNING NO. P-FY-15-22) 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
APPROVING THE WESTFIELD MASTER PRELIMINARY PLAT, AN 
APPROXIMATELY 224.54 ACRE TRACT SITUATED IN THE BALDWIN 
ROBERTSON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 17, AND IN THE NANCY CHANCE 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 5, BOTH LOCATED IN BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, ON 
THE NORTH OF WEST ADAMS AVENUE, EAST SIDE OF NORTH PEA RIDGE 
ROAD, AND SOUTH OF PRAIRIE VIEW ROAD, WITH AN EXCEPTION TO THE 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE SECTION 8.3: PARK LAND DEDICATION; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 

Whereas, on May 18, 2015, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of the 
Westfield Master Preliminary plat, an approximately 224.54 acre tract situated in the Baldwin Robertson 
Survey, Abstract No. 17 and in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, both located in Bell County, 
Texas, on the north of West Adams Avenue, east side of North Pea Ridge Road, and south of Prairie 
View Road, with an exception to Unified Development Code (UDC) Section 8.3: Park Land Dedication; 
and 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to approve 

the Westfield Master Preliminary plat, with an exception to Section 8.3 of the UDC related to park land 
dedication. 

 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COULD OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves the Westfield Master Preliminary plat, an approximately 

224.54 acre tract situated in the Baldwin Robertson Survey, Abstract No. 17 and in the Nancy Chance 
Survey, Abstract No. 5, both located in Bell County, Texas, on the north of West Adams Avenue, east 
side of North Pea Ridge Road, and south of Prairie View Road, with an exception to UDC Section 8.3: 
Park Land Dedication. 

 
Part 2: The City Council approves an exception to Section 8.3 of the UDC related to Park Land 

Dedication, allowing proposed private parks to serve this development and allowing consideration for the 
pedestrian linkages that are being provided to the anticipated 350 acre Crossroads Park located to the 
northeast of the subdivision, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. Approximately 7.3 acres of parkland will be provided and maintained by the HOA and will 

include various amenities within the parkland framework such as pocket parks and 
linkages; and  
 

2. The seven acres will serve the number of single family dwellings shown in this preliminary 
master plat with a surplus acreage to serve approximately 175 multi-family dwellings. If 
more multi-family is proposed in the future than the surplus will serve, this may be 
addressed prior to multi-family development. 

 
 



2 
 

 
 
 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution was 

passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of July 2015. 
  
        THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
  
               
        DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 
 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary       City Attorney 



   

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

 

07/02/15 
Item #6  

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW  
Brian Chandler Planning Director,  
Beverly Zendt Assistant Planning Director   
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution waiving distance requirements identified in 
Section 5.3.15 of the Unified Development Code between establishments with alcoholic beverage sales 
for on premise consumption and places of worship, public parks and residentially zoned or developed 
lots on PD-GR zoned lots located north of West Adams Avenue and on the east and west sides of 
Westfield Boulevard and part of the Westfield Master Preliminary Plat. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of a resolution waiving distance 
requirements identified in Section 5.3.15 of the Unified Development Code between establishments 
with alcoholic beverage sales for on premise consumption and places of worship, public parks and 
residentially zoned or developed lots on PD-GR zoned lots located north of West Adams Avenue and 
on the east and west sides of Westfield Boulevard and part of the Westfield Master Preliminary Plat. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The Unified Development Code establishes performance standards for alcoholic 
beverage sales for on premise consumption in Section 5.3.15 Alcoholic Beverage Sales for On 
Premise Consumption. 
 
This section addresses basic performance standards to be considered in the granting of a Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP) and conditions to be considered in the revocation of a CUP for establishments selling 
alcohol for on premise consumption. Standards address, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

 Adequate parking, 
 Adequate security, 
 Compatibility with other surrounding uses, 
 Operation of establishments in a manner that does not to disturb the surrounding area or 

surrounding properties, and  
 Health, safety and general welfare of the City and its inhabitants.  

 
Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code (TABC) Requirements 
In addition to the above standards, the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code (TABC) Section 109.33(a): 
Sales near School Church or Hospital permits municipalities to adopt standards establishing 
distance requirements for the sale of alcoholic beverages near churches, schools or hospitals. TABC 
regulations permit municipalities to adopt a 300 foot distancing requirement between establishments 
selling alcohol and such uses and prescribes a method for the measurement of required distance.  



   
07/02/15 
Item #6  

Regular Agenda           
Page 2 of 3 

 

Additionally, the TABC establishes procedures for granting a variance to adopted distancing 
requirements under Section 109.33(e) stating: 
 
The commissioners court of a county or the governing board of a city or town that has enacted a 
regulation under Subsection (a) of this section may also allow variances to the regulation if the 
commissioners court or governing body determines that enforcement of the regulation in a particular 
instance is not in the best interest of the public, constitutes waste or inefficient use of land or other 
resources, creates an undue hardship on an applicant for a license or permit, does not serve its 
intended purpose, is not effective or necessary, or for any other reason the court or governing board, 
after consideration of the health, safety, and welfare of the public and the equities of the situation, 
determines is in the best interest of the community. 
 
Unified Development Code Distancing Requirements 
 
UDC Section 5.3.15 Alcoholic Beverage Sales for On Premise Consumption establishes such 
distancing requirements in the following sections:  
 
Section 5.3.15B1 
This section establishes standards for establishments with alcoholic beverage sales for on premise 
consumption where the gross revenue from the sale of alcoholic beverages must be less than 75% of 
the total gross revenue of the establishment.  This section states:  
 
The establishment must not be within 300 feet of a place of worship, public school or public hospital. 
 
Section 5.3.15C1 
This section establishes standards for establishments with alcoholic beverage sales for on premise 
consumption where the gross revenue from the sale of alcoholic beverages may be 75% or more of 
the total gross revenue of the establishment. This section states: 
 
The establishment must not be within 300 feet of a place of worship, elementary or secondary school, 
public hospital, public park or any residentially zoned or developed lot.  
 
Variance Criteria 
The applicant is proposing a mixed-use higher density development project designed to provide 
opportunities for neighborhood residents to access open space amenities, retail and entertainment 
opportunities close to where they live and work – conceptually reducing the number of automobile trips 
to destination points around the city. This development pattern provides a lifestyle opportunity currently 
sought after by both older and younger community members. Additionally, such development advances 
several goals identified in the Choices ’08 Temple Comprehensive Plan including but not limited to: 
 

 Resource Protection, 
 Alternative subdivision design, 
 The encouragement of new development in growth areas, and 
 Reduction of sprawl. 

 
 



   
07/02/15 
Item #6  

Regular Agenda           
Page 3 of 3 

 
The proposed distancing variance, permitted under TABC 109.33, would allow for the full integration of 
multiple uses including residential, professional, recreational and entertainment uses. This mixed–use 
development pattern would allow for increased lifestyle choices for current and prospective residents – 
thus improving the quality of life for many community members who choose to live in and visit this 
uniquely developed area. Because of the range of recreational/entertainment uses and their close 
proximity to other neighborhood and service uses, it would be very difficult for the applicant/developer 
to provide the same range of choices while simultaneously meeting all the  distancing requirements 
prescribed by the UDC.  

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Westfield Master Preliminary Plat 
Westfield master Planned Development Zoning Map 
Resolution 

 

 

 

  





PD-SF-3

PD-GR
PD-SFA-3

PD-GR1

PD-GR1

PD-GR

PD-GR

PD-GRPD-SF-3

PD-SF-3

PD-SF-3PD-SF-3
PD-SF-3

PD-G
R

Exhibit A



1 
 

 
 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
WAIVING DISTANCE REQUIREMENTS IDENTIFIED IN SECTION 5.3.15 OF THE 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE, BETWEEN ESTABLISHMENTS WITH 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE SALES FOR ON-PREMISE CONSUMPTION AND 
PLACES OF WORSHIP, PUBLIC PARKS AND RESIDENTIALLY ZONED OR 
DEVELOPED LOTS ON PLANNED DEVELOPMENT-GENERAL RETAIL ZONED 
LOTS LOCATED NORTH OF WEST ADAMS AVENUE, ON THE EAST AND WEST 
SIDES OF WESTFIELD BOULEVARD AND PART OF THE WESTFIELD MASTER 
PRELIMINARY PLAT; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 

Whereas, the Unified Development Code (UDC) establishes performance standards for alcoholic 
beverage sales for on premise consumption in Section 5.3.15, “Alcoholic Beverage Sales for On Premise 
Consumption”; 
 

Whereas, this section addresses basic performance standards to be considered in the granting of a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) and conditions to be considered in the revocation of a CUP for 
establishments selling alcohol for on premise consumption;  
 

Whereas, the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code (TABC) Section 109.33(a) states that 
municipalities may  adopt standards establishing distance requirements for the sale of alcoholic beverages 
 near schools, churches or hospitals;  

 
Whereas, TABC regulations permit municipalities to adopt a 300 foot distancing requirement 

between establishments selling alcohol and such uses, prescribes a method for the measurement of 
required distance, and authorizes municipalities to grant a variance to distancing requirements when the 
variance would promote the best interests of the community;  
 

Whereas, the applicant is proposing a mixed-use higher density development project designed to 
provide opportunities for neighborhood residents to access open space amenities, retail and entertainment 
opportunities close to where they live and work;  
 

Whereas, the proposed distancing variance, permitted under TABC 109.33, would allow for the 
full integration of multiple uses including residential, professional, recreational and entertainment uses -
this mixed–use development pattern would allow for increased lifestyle choices for current and 
prospective residents; and 

 
Whereas the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to waive 

the distance requirements identified in Section 5.3.15 of the Unified Development Code between 
establishments with alcoholic beverage sales for on premise consumption and places of worship, public 
parks and residentially zoned or developed lots on Planned Development-General Retail (PD-GR) zoned 
lots located north of West Adams Avenue, on the east and west sides of Westfield Boulevard and part of 
the Westfield Master Preliminary Plat. 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COULD OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council waives the distance requirements identified in Section 5.3.15 of the 

Unified Development Code between establishments with alcoholic beverage sales for on premise 
consumption and places of worship, public parks and residentially zoned or developed lots on Planned 
Development-General Retail (PD-GR) zoned lots located north of West Adams Avenue, on the east and 
west sides of Westfield Boulevard and part of the Westfield Master Preliminary Plat. 
 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution was 
passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of July, 2015. 
  

        THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
  
               
        DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 
 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary       City Attorney 



   

 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM   

 

07/02/15 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Mark Baker, Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-15-20:  Consider adopting an 
ordinance to rezone property located at 7425 West Adams Avenue from Neighborhood Service District 
(NS) to Planned Development-Neighborhood Service District (PD-NS) with a development plan to allow 
drive-in restaurants, and a Conditional Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premise 
consumption in establishments where between 50% and 75% of the total gross revenue may be from 
the sale of alcoholic beverages.   
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At its June 1, 2015 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 6 to 0 to recommend approval of the requested rezoning from 
Neighborhood Service (NS) to Planned Development – Neighborhood Service (PD-NS) subject to the 
conditions recommended by Staff. The Planning and Zoning Commission also voted 6 to 0 to 
recommend approval of a Conditional Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premise 
consumption in establishments where between 50% and 75% of the total gross revenue may be from 
the sale of alcoholic beverages, subject to the conditions recommended by Staff. 
 
During the meeting, the applicant clarified that anticipated tenants would not include bars, taverns or 
similar-type of uses. Further, it was requested by Commissioner Crisp, for Staff to confirm that approval 
did not include package stores, bars and/or sale of alcoholic beverages for off-premise consumption. 
Staff confirmed.   
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  This request for rezoning: 
 

1. Is in compliance with the provisions of the Planned Development Criteria as required by 
Unified Development Code (UDC) Section 3.4.5; 

2. Is in compliance with the specific standards in UDC Section 5.3.15A & B; 
3. Is in compliance with Chapter 4 of the City of Temple Code of Ordinances related to 

alcoholic beverages;  
4. Is consistent with adjacent Suburban Commercial land uses and the Neighborhood 

Service zoning district established, adjacent to and across the property on West Adams 
Ave (FM 2305);  

5. Is in compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan; and 
6. Public facilities are also available to serve the subject property.   

 



   
07/02/15 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 
Staff recommends approval of the requested rezoning from Neighborhood Service (NS) to Planned 
Development - Neighborhood Service (PD-NS), subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. As listed by UDC Section 5.1, all permitted uses within the Neighborhood Service (NS) district 
are allowed, with the addition of drive-in restaurants, which will be allowed only in the 
northerly 2.037 acre portion of Westfield Market; 

2. Drive-in restaurants are prohibited in the southerly 2.879 acre portion of Westfield Market but 
applicant may request approval of a new and separate development plan in the future; 

3. Drive-in restaurants are restricted to a drive-aisle and drive-in (pick-up) window only; 
4. The Director of Planning may be authorized to approve minor modifications to the City 

Council-approved Development Plan, including but not limited to the selection of exterior 
building materials, screening, buffering, landscaping and minor modifications to the overall 
site layout;  

5. Submittal of a Development Plan at the time of Construction Documents, that is in substantial 
compliance to Exhibit A of the Rezoning Ordinance or as amended by subsequent action by 
the Director of Planning or City Council, is required; 

6. Prior to development of the southerly 2.879 acre portion of the Westfield Market, a 
subdivision plat is filed for review with the Planning Department; 

7. Upon residential development or residential rezoning of the undeveloped property between 
the First Baptist Church and Westfield Market, the owner/developer of the Westfield Market 
shall be responsible for the submittal of a revised development plan to the Planning 
Department, confirming compliance of the required buffering and screening.  

 
Staff recommends approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages 
for on-premise consumption in establishments where between 50% and 75% of the total gross revenue 
may be from the sale of alcoholic beverages, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The use may be allowed in any of the developed building suites within the total 4.916 acre 
Westfield Market; 

2. The use is subject to compliance with Chapter 4 of the City Code of Ordinances related to 
alcoholic beverages; 

3. The Conditional Use must comply with UDC Section 5.3.15A related to alcoholic beverage 
sales for on-premise consumption and UDC Section 5.3.15B related to the 50% to 75% range 
of gross revenue, from all alcoholic beverage sales with on-premise consumption; and 

4. As listed in UDC Section 5.1 and upon separate request, all other conditional uses identified 
in the NS district, are subject to review by a separate conditional use permit application 
process. 

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant, John Kiella on behalf of Tem-Tex Investments LLC, requests 
rezoning of a 4.916 +/- acre property, comprised of a 2.037 +/- acre northern portion and a 2.879 +/- 
acre southern portion, from Neighborhood Service (NS) district to Plan Development – Neighborhood 
Service (PD-NS) district and requests allowance of “pickup” or drive-in windows on two suites along 
with two separate drive aisles within the Westfield Market development.  Drive-in restaurant uses are 
not permitted in the Neighborhood Service (NS) district but are permitted in the General Retail (GR) 
district. If approved, the requested Planned Development would include the additional use by-right. 
 
 



   
07/02/15 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 
In addition, a Conditional Use Permit, for establishments where between 50% and 75% of the total 
gross revenue may be from the sale of all alcoholic beverages with on-premise consumption, is being 
requested. This use normally requires a conditional use in all non-residentially-zoned districts (Office 
through Heavy Industrial), with the exception of Office-1 (O-1), where it is prohibited altogether.  If 
approved as a conditional use, the applicant is requesting that this use be permitted anywhere within 
the property without the need for multiple applications for a separate conditional use permit. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  The 4.916 +/- acre subject property in its entirety was rezoned from General 
Agriculture (AG) to Neighborhood Service (NS) district by Ordinance 2013-4594 on June 20, 2013. The 
need for the rezoning to Planned Development was identified by staff during the review of Construction 
Documents for the proposed Westfield Market.  The plans for the northern 2.037 +/- acre portion, show 
two (2) drive aisles along with “pickup”, drive-in windows, as identified and represented on the attached 
building elevations.   
 
Staff has worked closely with the applicant to identify the nature of potential uses which utilize this 
feature, most notably drive-in restaurants with a “pickup” window were identified as potential tenants.  
A base zoning of Neighborhood Service does not permit restaurants with this feature.  Therefore, the 
current request entails a combination of Planned Development as well as Conditional Use Permit 
consideration.   
 
Per UDC Section 3.4.5, when considering a Planned Development, the approving body must consider 
10 criteria.  Compliance to the criteria are discussed in the attached Planned Development Criteria and 
compliance summary. Further, per UDC Sec 3.4.3A, as a Planned Development, a Development Plan 
for consideration and approval by City Council is required.  
 
UDC Section 3.4.1 defines a Planned Development as: 

“A flexible overlay zoning district designed to respond to unique development proposals, special 
design considerations and land use transitions by allowing evaluation of land use relationships 
to surrounding areas through development plan approval.”  

 
As a Planned Development, a Development Plan (Exhibit A) is subject to review and approval as part 
of the rezoning. As opposed to a standard rezoning, conditions of approval can be included into the 
rezoning Ordinance. The submitted Development Plan, provides the boundaries and the layout for the 
proposed building footprint, parking area, and drive aisles. While enhancements are normally an 
expectation of a Planned Development to off-set the unique manner of the request, the nature and 
location of this request did not generate the extensive need for such enhancements. 
 
In this case, the Applicant is requesting a CUP that would allow the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-
premise consumption in establishments where between 50% and 75% of the total gross revenue may 
be from the sale of alcoholic beverages. The use could be applied in any of the building suites. 
 
Additional discussion and analysis can be found in the attached Planning & Zoning Commission staff 
report dated June 1, 2015. 
 
 
 



   
07/02/15 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Owners of Thirty-six (36) properties within 200-feet of the subject property, were 
sent notice of the public hearing as required by State law and City Ordinance. As of Tuesday June 23, 
2015 at 12:00 PM, five notices, representing eight properties, for approval and one notice for 
disapproval have been received.  
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on May 21, 2015, in accordance with state law and 
local ordinance. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Planning & Zoning Commission Staff Report – June 1, 2015 
Chapter 4 – Code of Ordinances – Alcoholic Beverages 
Planned Development Criteria and Compliance Summary Table 
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Development Plan (Exhibit A) 
Landscape Plan 
Building Elevations (Pickup Windows Encircled) 
Aerial Map 
Zoning Map 
Future Land Use and Character Map    
Utility Map 
Localized area of the Thoroughfare Plan 
Localized area of the Trails Plan 
Notification Map 
Returned Property Owner Notices 
Ordinance 
 



   
 
            

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 
 

06/01/15 
Item #2 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 10 

 
APPLICANT / DEVELOPMENT: John Kiella (On behalf of Tem-Tex Investments LLC) 
 
 
CASE MANAGER: Mark Baker, Planner 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Z-FY-15-20:  Hold a public hearing to consider and recommend action on a 
rezoning from Neighborhood Service District (NS) to Planned Development-Neighborhood Service 
District (PD-NS) with a development plan to allow drive-in restaurants, and a Conditional Use Permit 
to allow establishments where between 50% & 75% of the total gross revenue may be from the sale 
of all alcoholic beverages with on-premise consumption, on approximately 4.916 +/- acres, situated in 
the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, located at 7425 West Adams Avenue.   
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Based on the following analysis and reasons that: 
 

1. That the proposed Development Plan has demonstrated compliance with the provisions 
of the Planned Development Criteria as required by UDC Section 3.4.5; 

2. The project has demonstrated compliance with the specific standards in Unified 
Development Code (UDC) Section 5.3.15A & B; 

3. The project has demonstrated compliance to Chapter 4 of the City of Temple Code of 
Ordinances related to alcoholic beverages;  

4. The request is consistent with adjacent Suburban Commercial land uses and the 
Neighborhood Service zoning district established, adjacent to and across the property 
on West Adams Ave (FM 2305); 

5. The request is in compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan; and 
6. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.   

 
Staff recommends approval of the requested rezoning from Neighborhood Services (NS) to Planned 
Development - Neighborhood Services (PD-NS), subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. As listed by UDC Section 5.1, all permitted uses within the Neighborhood Service (NS) 
district are allowed, with the addition of drive-in restaurants, in the northerly 2.037 +/- acre 
portion of Westfield Market; 

2. That drive-in restaurants are prohibited in the southerly 2.879 +/- acre portion of Westfield 
Market but subject to approval of a revised development plan; 

3. That drive-in restaurants are restricted to a drive-aisle and drive-in (pick-up) window only; 
4. That the Director of Planning may be authorized discretion to approve minor modifications 

to the City Council-approved Development Plan, including but not limited to the selection of 



                                                                                                                                                                    
       06/01/15 
                                                                                                                                                                      Item #2              

Page 2 of 10 
 

exterior building materials, screening, buffering, landscaping and minor modifications to the 
overall site layout;  

5. At the time of development, of the southerly 2.879 +/- acre portion of the Westfield Market, 
a Development Plan is submitted for review by the Planning & Zoning Commission & City 
Council;   

6. Submittal of a Development Plan at the time of Construction Documents that is in 
substantial compliance to the Development Plan attached as Exhibit A of the Rezoning 
Ordinance or as amended by subsequent action by the Director of Planning or City Council; 

7. That prior to development of the southerly 2.879 +/- acre portion of the Westfield Market, a 
subdivision plat is filed for review with the Planning Department; and 

8. That upon residential development or residential rezoning of the undeveloped property 
between the First Baptist Church and Westfield Market, the owner/developer of the 
Westfield Market shall be responsible for the submittal of a revised development plan to the 
Planning Department, confirming  compliance of the required buffering and screening; and  

 
Staff recommends approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit to allow establishments where 
between 50% & 75% of the total gross revenue may be from the sale of all alcoholic beverages with 
on-premise consumption, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. That the use may be allowed in any of the developed building suites within the total 4.916 
+/- acre Westfield Market; 

2. The use is subject to compliance to Chapter 4 of the City Code of Ordinances related to 
alcoholic beverages; 

3. That the Conditional Use, complies with UDC Section 5.3.15A related to alcoholic beverage 
sales for on-premise consumption and UDC Section 5.3.15B related to the 50% to 75% 
range of gross revenue, from all alcoholic beverage sales with on-premise consumption; 
and 

4. That as listed in UDC Section 5.1 and upon separate request, all other conditional uses 
identified in the Neighborhood Service (NS) district, are subject to review by a separate 
conditional use permit application process. 

 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant, John Kiella on behalf of Tem-Tex Investments LLC, requests 
rezoning of a 4.916 +/- acre property, comprised of a 2.037 +/- acre northern portion and a 2.879 +/- 
acre southern portion, from Neighborhood Service (NS) district to Plan Development – Neighborhood 
Service (PD-NS) district and allow “pickup” or “bank teller-style”, drive-in windows on two suites along 
with two separate drive aisles within the Westfield Market development.  Drive-in restaurant uses are 
not permitted in the Neighborhood Service (NS) district but are permitted in the General Retail (GR) 
district. If approved, the requested Planned Development would include the additional use by-right. 
 
In addition, a Conditional Use Permit, for establishments where between 50% & 75% of the total 
gross revenue may be from the sale of all alcoholic beverages with on-premise consumption, is being 
requested. This use normally requires a conditional use in all non-residentially-zoned districts (Office 
through Heavy Industrial), with the exception of Office-1 (O-1), where it is prohibited altogether.  If 
approved as a conditional use, the applicant is requesting that this use be permitted anywhere within 
the property without the need for multiple applications for a separate conditional use permit. 
 



                                                                                                                                                                    
       06/01/15 
                                                                                                                                                                      Item #2              

Page 3 of 10 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  The 4.916 +/- acre subject property in its entirety was rezoned from General 
Agriculture (AG) to Neighborhood Service (NS) district by Ordinance 2013-4594 on June 20, 2013. 
The need for the rezoning to Planned Development was identified by staff during the review of 
Construction Documents for the proposed Westfield Market.  The plans for the northern 2.037 +/- 
acre portion, show two (2) drive aisles along with “pickup”, drive-in windows, as identified and 
represented on the attached building elevations.   
 
Staff has worked closely with the applicant to identify the nature of potential uses which utilize this 
feature, most notably drive-in restaurants with a pickup-style window were identified as potential 
tenants.  A base zoning of Neighborhood Services does not permit restaurants with this feature. 
 
In addition, establishments with alcoholic beverage sales with on-premise consumption that is 
between 50% and 75% of the gross total revenue were also identified.  This use requires a 
conditional use permit within the Neighborhood Service (NS) district.  Therefore, the current request 
entails a combination of Planned Development as well as Conditional Use Permit consideration.   
 
Planned Development:  Per UDC Section 3.4.5, when considering a Planned Development, the 
approving body must consider 10 criteria.  Compliance to the criteria are discussed and provided in 
the attached Planned Development Criteria and compliance summary.  
 
Further, per UDC Sec 3.4.3A, as a Planned Development, a Development Plan for consideration and 
approval by City Council is required.  
 
UDC Section 3.4.1 defines a Planned Development as: 
 

“A flexible overlay zoning district designed to respond to unique development proposals, 
special design considerations and land use transitions by allowing evaluation of land use 
relationships to surrounding areas through development plan approval.”  

 
As a Planned Development, a Development Plan (Exhibit A) is subject to review and approval as part 
of the rezoning. As opposed to a standard rezoning, conditions of approval can be included into the 
rezoning Ordinance. The Development Plan that has been submitted, provides the boundaries and 
the layout for the proposed building footprint, parking area, and drive-in aisles. While enhancements 
are normally an expectation of a Planned Development to off-set the unique manner of the request, 
the nature and location of this request did not generate the extensive need for such enhancements. 
 
The current request for a Planned Development (PD) is proposed to retain the Neighborhood Service 
base-zoning with the addition of the use of allowing drive-in restaurants. Uses that are permitted by-
right in the Neighborhood Service (NS) district which utilize the drive-in window include: 
 
1. Bank, 
2. Cleaning, pressing or pick-up shop, and 
3. Pharmacy 
 
It should be noted that package stores are not permitted and require a minimum Commercial (C) 
zoning with approval of a separate conditional use permit.  Establishments that generate 75% or 



                                                                                                                                                                    
       06/01/15 
                                                                                                                                                                      Item #2              

Page 4 of 10 
 
more of their revenue from on-premise sales of all alcoholic beverages with on-premise consumption 
are also not permitted. Additionally, sale of beer and wine, which include beer and wine-based 
products with off-premise consumption, such as those using the pickup window for sales would also 
be prohibited in the Neighborhood Service district and require review of a separate conditional use 
permit. 
 
A drive-in restaurant is defined by Section 11.2 of the UDC as follows: 
 

“An establishment designed and constructed to serve food for consumption on premises in an 
automobile or for carry-out for off-premises consumption and that establishment may or may 
not have an on-premise dining room or counter”. 

 
It should be noted that the UDC does not specifically differentiate between a drive-in and a drive-thru 
(through) window in the general development standards.  However, a drive-thru (through) window, as 
anticipated by this application, is provided for and listed exclusively in the Temple, Medical and 
Educational Overlay district (TMED). Per UDC Sections 6.3.6E.2 & 10, the TMED district provides for 
locational standards on the building for the drive-thru as well as vehicle stacking space for the drive-
aisles.  While not required by the Neighborhood Service zoning district, the standards appear to have 
been met. 
 
Since a restaurant with a drive-in window is a consideration of the Planned Development, it should be 
noted that per UDC Section 7.1.2, there are performance standards related to noise and noise levels 
received at the property line of any zoned property. Further, UDC Section 7.1.8 is applicable related 
to glare on any zoned property.  
 
Per UDC Section 7.7, since this adjacent property is Agriculture-zoned (AG), it is considered 
residentially-zoned and triggers the buffering and screening requirements. According to the applicant, 
both the applicant and the pastor of the church have expressed a desire to forego the requirement of 
solid fencing to meet the buffering and screening requirement.    
 
Further, the applicant has indicated that a letter is forthcoming from the First Baptist Church regarding 
the solid fence, as of staff report preparation, it has not been received. Staff is in agreement that a 
solid fence would not be appropriate but would request enhanced landscaping to serve as a buffer 
instead. While the applicant acknowledges that additional landscaping will be provided along the 
western boundary, currently, this additional landscaping has not been finalized. As such, the applicant 
is requesting flexibility to identify locations for some additional landscaping at the time of construction 
permit review. This request is addressed by a proposed condition allowing the needed flexibility by 
staff when reviewing the development plan at the time of Construction Plan review. 
 
Buffering and screening enhancements the applicant has agreed to specifically are as follows: 
 

I. Replacement of chain-link fencing with solid wood panels on southern boundary:  
While required for buffering and screening, the applicant has agreed to replace the 
existing chain-link fencing to create a continuous solid wood fence along the southern 
boundary of the property. This is immediately adjacent to the developed lots of the 
Meadows, Phase I residential subdivision. 
 



                                                                                                                                                                    
       06/01/15 
                                                                                                                                                                      Item #2              

Page 5 of 10 
 

II. Enhanced Landscaping: The attached Landscape Plan for Construction Plan review 
shows 15% of the 2.037 +/- acre site being provided with landscape materials. This 
exceeds the minimum requirement of 5% landscaping. 

 
In addition, discussions between the applicant and the church pastor identified potential uses of the 
church’s undeveloped portion of property to the west of the proposed Westfield Market. It was 
speculated that the land will be sold-off and developed with non-residential uses, if that occurs, the 
buffer requirement would no longer be necessary. The only time this buffer is required, is if developed 
with residential uses. The buffer would likely be in the form of landscaping and a condition of approval 
is proposed to address this possibility. 
 
Additional Site Development (Future 2nd Phase): Since a site plan for the southerly 2.879 +/- acre 
portion of the property is not available, buffering and screening as well as discussion about impacts 
related to noise, light and buffering standards is problematic.  Any impacts would be evaluated at the 
time the site development is proposed. 
  
As a result, staff is recommending that the use of the drive-in window feature be limited to the building 
suites depicted in the Development Plan attached as Exhibit A for the northerly 2.037 +/- acre portion.   
 
Further, it is being recommended that restaurants that meet the drive-in definition be limited to those 
with the drive-in window and drive aisles features exclusively. Effectively, this restriction would 
prohibit a drive-in restaurant, such as “Sonic” or other similar type of “50’s” / “60’s – style” restaurant 
establishments in their entirety.  This restriction is consistent with the intent of the base zoning, since 
the zoning is Neighborhood Service (NS).  
 
Conditional Use Permit:  In this case, the use of allowing establishments which generate between 
50% and 75% of their gross revenue may be from the sale and on-premise consumption of all 
alcoholic beverages is being requested. The use would be applied in any of the building suites. 
 
UDC Section 5.1 – Use Table, differentiates between four (4) different categories of alcoholic 
beverage sales for on-premise consumption and are shown by the following table: 
 

Alcoholic Beverage Sales with On-Premise Consumption  
UDC Section 5.1 (Use Table) 

Percentage of Alcohol Sales to Gross Revenue Permitted with CUP in NS 

A.  Beer & Wine Only Less Than 75% Revenue from Alcohol YES 
B.  All Alcoholic Beverages 75% or more from Revenue from 
Alcohol NO 

C.  All Alcoholic Beverages >50% & <75% YES 

D.  All Alcoholic Beverages 50% or less Revenue from Alcohol YES 
 
The request to “blanket” the use in any of the proposed suites would reduce the processing of 
multiple conditional use permits. To date, no other conditional uses have been identified. If at a later 
date, other conditional uses are identified, they will require a separate consideration of a conditional 
use permit application.   
 



                                                                                                                                                                    
       06/01/15 
                                                                                                                                                                      Item #2              

Page 6 of 10 
 
Whether permitted by-right or conditionally permitted, UDC Section 5.3.15, addresses provisions for 
establishments where there is alcoholic beverage sales for on-premise consumption. These 
provisions, address permitting requirements through the Texas Alcohol Beverage Commission 
(TABC), distance requirements from sensitive uses, as well as cancelation, suspension and 
revocation of the conditional use permit.  Adherence to these standards in their entirety are included 
by reference in the conditions of approval for the permit.   
 
Additionally, UDC Section 5.3.15B provides standards for establishments with alcoholic beverage 
sales with on-premise consumption that is between 50% and 75% of the gross total revenue.  The 
standards are as follows: 
 

1. The establishment must not be within 300 feet of a place of worship, public school or 
public hospital; 

 
2. The distance between the establishment where alcoholic beverages are sold and a 

place of worship or public hospital must be measured along the property lines of the 
street fronts and from front door to front door, and in a direct line across intersections. 
The distance between the place of business where alcoholic beverages are sold and 
the public school must be measured in a straight, direct line from the property line of the 
public school to the property line of the establishment, and in a direct line across 
intersections; 

 
3. If the permit or license holder is located on or above the fifth story of a multi-story 

building, in a direct line from the property line of the public school to the property line of 
the place of business, in a direct line across intersections, and vertically up the building 
at the property line to the base of the floor on which the permittee is located.    

 
Staff has considered these three (3) standards and “as the crow flies”, is about 1300 feet to the 
closest point from door to door.  However, that measurement is not provided for by the UDC. 
 
Using the prescribed measurement method provided by the UDC, the northerly 2.037 +/- acre portion 
of Westfield Market to the adjacent First Baptist Church is approximately 1,700 feet, confirming that 
the minimum 300-foot distance has been exceeded.  There are no other sensitive uses such as a 
public hospital or public school within the immediate area. 
 
With regard to the southerly 2.879 +/- acre portion of the subject property, as indicated earlier in the 
report, there is no proposed site plan at this time. Staff has estimated the distances, using the 
minimum Neighborhood Service dimensional standards for a hypothetical building footprint, and 
determined that the 300-foot distance has also been exceeded at over 2,000 feet to the adjacent First 
Baptist Church. 
 
It should be noted that UDC Section 5.3.15C.1 requires a 300 foot distance between the 
establishment serving alcoholic beverages and a residentially zoned or developed lot. This distance 
provision only applies in cases where the percentage of alcohol sales exceeds 75% of gross revenue 
and is not applicable to this case. 
 



                                                                                                                                                                    
       06/01/15 
                                                                                                                                                                      Item #2              

Page 7 of 10 
 
In addition, Chapter 4 of the City of Temple Code of Ordinances reiterates state laws for distancing 
with regard to alcohol sales and consumption restrictions. This is regardless of whether UDC Section 
5.3.15 is applicable to a given instance.  Compliance to Chapter 4 standards are required and are 
included as a condition. 
 
Development of the southerly 2.879 +/- acre portion of the property will trigger a subdivision plat. The 
plat will be required to be reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC) and recorded with 
Bell County. Since this is part of the Planned Development, when the southerly portion is developed, 
staff is required per UDC Section 3.4.2, to bring forward the development plan to DRC. Staff is 
requesting that based on review by the DRC, that the Director of Planning can be authorized 
discretion to approve any future development plan. 
 
In conclusion, in accordance with UDC Section 3.4.5, in determining whether to approve, approve 
with conditions or deny a Planned Development application, the Planning & Zoning Commission and 
City Council must consider specific criteria. While more detailed discussion can be found throughout 
this report, a synopsis to compliance with the required criteria can be found in the attached table 
entitled “Planned Development Criteria and Compliance Summary” 
 
Per UDC Section 3.4.2C, the City Council may include additional conditions of approval into the 
rezoning ordinance as follows: 
 
In approving a Planned Development, the City Council may require additional standards deemed 
necessary to create a reasonable transition to, and protection of, adjacent property and public areas, 
including but not limited to, access and circulations, signs, parking, building design, location and 
height, light and air, orientation, building coverage, outdoor lighting, landscaping, homeowners or 
property owners associations, open space, topography and screening. 
 
Therefore, the requested Planned Development and Conditional Use Permit have been requested for 
the entire 4.916 +/- acres.  Based on the above discussion, while the conditional use permit is being 
applied to the entire 4.916 +/- acre property, the Planned Development would be restricted to the 
northerly 2.037 +/- acre portion, with a condition that would authorize the DRC and Director of 
Planning to consider any future Development Plan without requiring City Council review. 
 
Although the subject property as Planned Development-Neighborhood Service is anticipated to be 
developed with retail and service uses, there are a number of uses that are permitted by-right.  As 
shown in the following table, the uses include but are not limited to: 

Residential uses    Nonresidential uses 
Single Family Attached/Detached  Farm or Ranch 
Industrialized Housing   Place of Worship 
Townhouse      Pre-School 

 
Prohibited uses include HUD-Code manufactured homes and land lease communities, duplexes and 
apartments. All commercial and industrial uses are prohibited, except these uses allowed by an 
approved conditional use permit, such as a temporary asphalt concrete batching plants, a petroleum 
or gas well or a cemetery, crematory or mausoleum and establishments which sells beer and wine 
with off-premise consumption. 



                                                                                                                                                                    
       06/01/15 
                                                                                                                                                                      Item #2              

Page 8 of 10 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the 
property, Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 
Direction FLUP    Zoning  Current Land Use 
Site  Suburban Residential  NS    Undeveloped 
North            Suburban Commercial GR   Retail & Service Uses    
South            Auto-Urban Residential SF-3                 The Meadows, Phase I, subdivision  
East           Auto-Urban Residential NS, GR, AG   Retail & Service Uses & Undeveloped 
West          Suburban Residential AG   First Baptist Church / Undeveloped 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) NO 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  YES 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should 
be consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

YES 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks 
Ordinance 

YES 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 
 
Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
Per Ordinance 2013-4594, on June 20, 2013, City Council approved the rezoning of 4.916 +/- acre 
property from Agriculture (AG) district to Neighborhood Service (NS) district.  
 
According to the City of Temple Comprehensive Plan / FLUP, the subject property, being a total 
4.916 +/- acres, is within the Suburban Residential designation of the Future Land Use Plan (FLUP).   
 
“The Suburban Residential designation is intended mid-size single family lots, allowing for greater 
separation between dwelling and more emphasis on green spaces versus the streets and driveways 
that predominate in an auto-urban setting.  The current land use designation is not consistent with the 
current or proposed rezoning request which includes the Neighborhood Service base zoning. 
 
While the proposed zoning is not consistent with the underlying Future Land Use Plan, the request is 
consistent with the Suburban Commercial Future Land Use Plan designation established across West 
Adams Ave (FM 2305) and that is established on both sides of West Adams, east of Meadowbrook 
Drive. 
 
In addition, Neighborhood Service (NS) zoning is established on the south side of West Adams Ave 
(FM 2305) and General Retail (GR) on the north side of West Adams Ave.  This would be expected 
and is consistent with zoning designations along this corridor under the Suburban Commercial Future 
Land Use Plan designation. 
 



                                                                                                                                                                    
       06/01/15 
                                                                                                                                                                      Item #2              

Page 9 of 10 
 
Additional discussion regarding compliance to UDC Section 3.4.3, Planned Development, is provided 
in the “Background” section in this report. 
 
If the rezoning from Neighborhood Service (NS) to Planned Development - Neighborhood Service 
(PD-NS) is approved, the Future Land Use Plan will need to be updated.  
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The property has frontage along West Adams Ave (FM 2305). The Thoroughfare Plan (see attached 
map) identifies West Adams Ave (FM 2305) as a major arterial.  The property takes access from 
West Adams Ave (FM 2305) from existing driveways.  No new driveways are proposed and no issues 
have been identified relative to access.  The existing driveways are a result of previous development 
on the subject property. 
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Water is available through a 3-inch waterline on the south side of West Adams Ave (FM 2305).  
Sewer is available from an 8-inch sewer line on the eastern side of the subject property. 
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
According to the Trails Master Plan Map, a City-Wide Spine Trail has been identified on the north side 
of West Adams Ave (FM 2305).  As a major arterial, a minimum 6-foot sidewalk is required.  The 
building plans, which are currently in review for the Westfield Market, show a 6-foot sidewalk, as 
required by code. 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: Non-Residential setbacks for this planned development with a 
base-zoning of Neighborhood Service district are:  
Min Lot Size  N/A    
Min Lot Width N/A    
Min Lot Depth N/A 
Front    15’  
Side             10’ 
Side (corner)     10’ 
Rear   10’ (UDC sec. 4.4.4.F3) 
Max Height  ALH (Any legal height not prohibited by other laws)  
 
Per UDC Section 8.2.3, sidewalks are required on both sides of the road for arterial streets. A 6-foot 
sidewalk will be installed at the time of development and is shown on the building plans, which are 
currently in review with the Construction Safety Department. The building plans are on-hold pending 
the outcome of the requested rezoning. 
 
While general provisions for buffering and screening are found in UDC Section 7.7, highlighted 
provisions include but not limited to: 
 
* Evergreen hedges with a minimum planted height of six feet, placed on 36-inch centers or, 

fences and walls constructed of wood , masonry, stone or pre-cast concrete from 6 to 8 feet in 
height above the  adjacent grade (UDC Section 7.7.4), 

 



                                                                                                                                                                    
       06/01/15 
                                                                                                                                                                      Item #2              

Page 10 of 10 
 
* Refuse containers are to be located in the side or rear of the property and screened from view 

per UDC Section 7.7.6, and  
 
* Outdoor storage is permitted in the NS zoning district, where the storage area is situated 

behind the principal building in the rear half of the property and where a solid wood or masonry 
fence screens the outdoor storage from public view.  Such wood or masonry fence must be at 
least one foot higher than the stored material (UDC Section 7.7.8.B1). 

 
 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE (DRC): As required by UDC Section 3.4.2B, the 
Development Plan for the proposed Westfield Market was reviewed by the DRC on May 18, 2015.  
No issues were identified. 
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Owners of Thirty-six (36) properties within 200-feet of the subject property, were 
sent notice of the public hearing as required by State law and City Ordinance. As of Thursday May 
28, 2015 at 12:00 PM, no notices have been received.  Staff will provide an update, if necessary at 
the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.  
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on May 21, 2015, in accordance with state law 
and local ordinance. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Chapter 4 – Code of Ordinances – Alcoholic Beverages 
Planned Development Criteria and Compliance Summary Table 
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Development Plan (Exhibit A) 
Landscape Plan 
Building Elevations (Pickup Windows Encircled) 
Aerial Map 
Zoning Map 
Future Land Use and Character Map    
Utility Map 
Localized area of the Thoroughfare Plan 
Localized area of the Trails Plan 
Notification Map 
 









PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CRITERIA AND COMPLIANCE SUMMARY

UDC Code Section 3.4.5 (A-J) Yes/No Discussion / Synopsis

A.  The Plan Complies with all provisions of 
      the Design and Development Standards 
      Manual, this UDC and other Ordinances 
      of the City. 

YES It is fully anticipated that the site plan design will conform to the UDC as well as to 
dimensional, developmental and design standards adopted by the City.  Review and 
determination of compliance is made at several review stages prior to the issuance of permits 
for construction and occupancy.

B.  The environmental impact of the deve-
      lopment relating to the preservation of 
      existing natural resources on the site and
      the impact on natural resources of the
      surrounding properties and neighbor-
      hood is mitigated.   

YES No environmental impacts associated with the preservation of existing natural resources, the 
surrounding properties and neighborhood are anticipated that can't be mitigated at the 
construction plan review phase.

C.  The development is in harmony with
      the character, use and design of the 
      surrounding area.

YES The surrounding area is being developed with non-residential uses fronting along W. Adams 
Ave, area (FM2305) which is identified as a major aterial.  Both Neighborhood Service (NS) 
and General Retail (GR) has been established in the immediate area which allows a variety of 
non-residential uses.  Proposed charactor is conistent with existing charactor.   Full 
compliance is anticipated.

D.  Safe and efficient vehicular and 
      pedestrian circulation systems are 
      provided.

YES Existing driveway cuts will be utilized and circulation will be addressed at the construction 
plan review stage of processing.  Full compliance is anticipated.

E.  Off-street parking and loading facilities
      are designed to ensure that all such
      spaces are usable and are safely and
      conveniently arranged.

YES Compliance determination is made Constuction plan review.  Full compliance is anticipated.

F.  Streets are designed with sufficient 
      width and suitable grade and 
      location to accommodate 
      prospective traffic and to provide 
      access for firefighting and 
      emergency equipment to 
      buildings.

YES West Adams Ave is existing. No new streets are proposed.  Compliance with related 
requirements will be determined with the reveiw of constuction documents.  Full compliance 
is anticipated.

G.  Streets are coordinated so as to compose
      a convenient system consistent with the
      Thoroughfare Plan of the City.

YES West Adams Ave (FM 2305) is existing.  No new streets are proposed.  Compliance to related 
requirements will be determined with the review of construction documents.  Full compliance 
is anticipated.

H.  Landscaping and screening are integrated
      into the overall site design:
     1.  To provide adequate buffers to shield
           lights, noise, movement or activities
           from adjacent properties when 
           necessary. 
     2.  To complement the design and location 
           of buildings.

YES / TBD Landscaping which exceeds minimal code requirements has been provided.  Discussion 
between staff and the applicant is on-going.  A condition of approval has been proposed to 
allow flexibility to negotiate additional landscaping on the western and southern boundaries 
as identified during the construction plan review.  Additional landscaping would be triggered 
if undeveloped portion of church property to the west is sold-off and developed with 
residential uses.  It is anticipated that land will eventually be developed with non-residential 
uses.  Full compliance to buffering and screening standards is anticipated.

I.  Open space areas are designed to 
    ensure that such areas are suitable 
    for intended recreation and 
    conservation uses.

YES Compliance will be determined with review of constuction documents.  Full compliance is 
anticipated.     

J.   Water, drainage, wastewater 
      facilities, garbage disposal and 
      other utilities necessary for 
      essential services to residents and
      occupants are provided.

YES All facilities are available.  Compliance to standards will be addressed with the review of 
construction documents.  Full compliance is anticipated.  



Site & Surrounding Property Photos 
 

 
 

Site:  Undeveloped Property (NS) 
 

 
 

Site:  Undeveloped Property – Close Up (NS) 



 
 

 
 

East:  Retail & Service Uses & Undeveloped (NS & GR & AG) 
 
 

 
 

West:  First Baptist Church / Undeveloped (AG) 



 
 

North: Retail & Service Uses (GR) 
 

 
 

North:  Retail & Service Uses (GR) 



 
 

South:  Single Family Residential - The Meadows, Phase 1 (SF-3) 
 

 
 

South:  Existing Fencing (Both Chain-Link & Solid Wood) 









C
as

e

20
0

' B
uf

fe
r

Z
o

ni
n

g

P
ar

ce
l

O
ut

b
lo

ck
 N

um
b

er

A
G

G
R

S
F

-3

N
S

M
F

-2

11
18

-B

11
03

-C 25
2

5-
A

11
03

-A

W
 A

D
A

M
S

 A
V

E

MEADOWBROOK DR

K
L

E
IN

 D
R

BLUESTEM CT

80
1

5

74
2

5

10
8

71
0

1

5

71
5

0

72
8

5

12
4

74
1

0

72
8

9
73

4
8

74
6

2

73
5

3

73
6

3

73
4

9

19

15
18

10
5

10
6

13
2

11
3

11
7

13
0

13
1

71
5

4

11
8

10
2

10
510

1

10
9

12
1

12
5

12
9

11
4

13
012

612
2

10
1

11
0

11
4

11
8

73
1

2

11
711

3

73
2

4

12
2

73
2

0

12
6

12
5

12
912

1

73
2

1

11
0

73
2

5

10
610

2
10

9

73
7

3

73
2

0

73
1

3
73

0
9

73
0

5

73
1

6

73
0

1

73
1

7

14
6

72
1

3
20

1
73

2
4

72
0

9
73

1
6

72
0

5
73

1
4

71
0

1

70
2

0

72
0

1
73

0
8

74
4

5

75
4

6

72
3

2

75
3

6

Z
-F

Y
-1

5-
20

A
er

ia
l M

a
p

74
25

 W
 A

da
m

s 
A

ve
.

G
IS

 p
ro

d
uc

ts
 a

re
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

os
es

 a
n

d 
m

ay
 n

o
t h

av
e 

b
ee

n 
p

re
p

ar
e

d 
fo

r 
o

r 
b

e 
su

ita
b

le
 fo

r 
le

ga
l, 

e
ng

in
ee

rin
g

, o
r 

su
rv

ey
in

g 
p

ur
p

os
es

.  
T

h
ey

 
do

 n
o

t r
e

pr
e

se
nt

 a
n

 o
n

-t
h

e-
g

ro
u

n
d 

su
rv

e
y 

an
d

 
re

p
re

se
n

t o
nl

y 
th

e
 a

p
pr

o
xi

m
a

te
 r

el
at

iv
e

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s.μ
12

3
4-

A
0

30
0

60
0

F
ee

t

5/
7

/2
0

1
5

C
ity

 o
f 

Te
m

p
le

 G
IS

m
ya

rb
e

rr
y



A
G

G
R

S
F

-3

M
F

-2

N
S

G
R

N
S

S
F

-2
 -

 P
D

G
R

G
R

W
 A

D
A

M
S

 A
V

E

MEADOWBROOK DR

H
O

N
E

Y
S

U
C

K
L

E

OLD WACO RD

K
L

E
IN

 D
R

H
O

N
E

Y
S

U
C

K
L

E
 D

R

T
O

B
O

S
A

 D
R

R
E

D
B

R
U

S
H

HILLIARD RD

VERBENA DR

BLUESTEM CT

WESTFIELD BLVD

FOXTAIL

T
A

N
G

L
E

H
E

A
D

D
R

CRAPE MYRTLE LN

HILLIARD RD

Z
-F

Y
-1

5-
20

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

a
p

74
25

 W
 A

da
m

s 
A

ve
.

G
IS

 p
ro

d
u

ct
s 

a
re

 f
o

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

o
se

s 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y 

no
t 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 p

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r 

o
r 

b
e

 s
u

ita
b

le
 f

o
r 

le
g

a
l, 

e
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g,
 o

r 
su

rv
e

yi
n

g
 p

u
rp

o
se

s.
  T

h
e

y 
do

 n
o

t 
re

p
re

se
n

t 
a

n
 o

n-
th

e-
g

ro
u

n
d 

su
rv

e
y 

a
nd

 
re

p
re

se
n

t 
o

n
ly

 th
e

 a
p

p
ro

xi
m

a
te

 r
el

a
tiv

e
 lo

ca
tio

n
 

of
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y 
b

ou
n

d
a

ri
e

s 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

fe
a

tu
re

s.μ
0

75
0

1,
5

00

F
ee

t

C
as

e

P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
.S

D
E

.C
u

rr
e

n
tZ

o
n

in
g

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
: 

P
ro

d
u

c
ti

o
n

.S
D

E
.C

u
rr

e
n

tZ
o

n
in

g
_R

e
p

S
F

-2
 -

 P
D

S
F

-3

M
F

-2

N
S

G
R

A
G

C
ity

 L
im

its

5/
7

/2
0

1
5

C
ity

 o
f 

Te
m

p
le

 G
IS



W
 A

D
A

M
S

 A
V

E

MEADOWBROOK DR

K
L

E
IN

 D
R

BLUESTEM CT

μ

Z
-F

Y
-1

5-
20

F
u

tu
re

 L
an

d
 U

se
 P

la
n

74
25

 W
 A

da
m

s 
A

ve

G
IS

 p
ro

d
uc

ts
 a

re
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

os
es

 
an

d 
m

a
y 

n
ot

 h
a

ve
 b

e
en

 p
re

pa
re

d
 fo

r 
or

 
be

 s
ui

ta
b

le
 f

or
 le

g
al

, e
ng

in
e

er
in

g
, o

r 
su

rv
e

yi
ng

 
pu

rp
o

se
s.

T
h

e
y 

do
 n

o
t r

e
pr

e
se

nt
 a

n
 

on
-t

h
e-

g
ro

u
n

d 
su

rv
e

y 
an

d
 r

e
pr

e
se

nt
 o

n
ly

 
th

e 
a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
e

 r
e

la
tiv

e 
lo

ca
tio

n
 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s.

C
as

e
P

a
rc

e
ls

S
u

b
u

rb
a

n
 R

e
si

d
e

n
tia

l
A

u
to

-U
rb

an
 R

e
si

de
n

tia
l

A
u

to
-U

rb
an

 C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l

S
u

b
u

rb
a

n
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l

0
4

0
0

8
0

0
2

0
0

F
e

e
t

5/
7

/2
0

1
5

C
ity

 o
f 

Te
m

p
le

 G
IS



G

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

8"

12
"

6"

8" 6"

8"

6"

3"

14
"

8"

6"

10"

10
"

6"

8"

10
"

8"

8"

W
 A

D
A

M
S

 A
V

E

MEADOWBROOK DR

K
L

E
IN

 D
R

BLUESTEM CT

Z
-F

Y
-1

5-
20

U
ti

li
ty

 M
a

p
74

25
 W

 A
da

m
s 

A
ve

G
IS

 p
ro

d
uc

ts
 a

re
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

os
es

 a
n

d 
m

ay
 n

o
t h

av
e 

b
ee

n 
p

re
p

ar
e

d 
fo

r 
o

r 
b

e 
su

ita
b

le
 fo

r 
le

ga
l, 

e
ng

in
ee

rin
g

, o
r 

su
rv

ey
in

g 
p

ur
p

os
es

.  
T

h
ey

 
do

 n
o

t r
e

pr
e

se
nt

 a
n

 o
n

-t
h

e-
g

ro
u

n
d 

su
rv

e
y 

an
d

 
re

p
re

se
n

t o
nl

y 
th

e
 a

p
pr

o
xi

m
a

te
 r

el
at

iv
e

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s.μ
C

ity
 L

im
its

G!.
F

ir
e

 H
yd

ra
n

t

W
a

te
r 

L
in

e

C
a

se

S
e

w
e

r 
L

in
e

E
xp

re
ss

w
a

y

M
a

jo
r 

A
rt

e
ri

a
l

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
a

jo
r 

A
rt

e
ri

a
l

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 K
-T

U
T

S

M
in

o
r 

A
rt

e
ri

a
l

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
in

o
r 

A
rt

e
ri

a
l

C
o

lle
ct

o
r

C
o

n
ce

p
tu

a
l C

o
lle

ct
o

r
0

3
0

0
6

0
0

1
5

0

F
e

e
t

5/
7

/2
0

1
5

C
ity

 o
f 

Te
m

p
le

 G
IS



80
1

5

74
2

5

10
8

71
0

1

5

71
5

0

72
8

5

74
1

0

72
8

9

12
4

73
4

8

74
6

2

73
5

3

73
6

3

19

15
1873

4
9

10
5

10
6

13
2

11
3

11
7

13
0

13
1

11
8

10
2

10
510

1

10
9

12
1

12
5

11
4

13
012

612
2

10
1

11
0

11
4

11
8

73
1

2

11
711

3

12
9

73
2

4

12
2

73
2

0

12
6

12
5

12
912

1

73
2

1

11
0

73
2

5

10
610

2
10

9

73
1

3
73

0
9

71
5

4

73
1

6

73
1

7

73
2

0
73

0
5

73
0

1
72

1
3

73
7

3

72
0

9

71
0

1

70
2

0

73
2

4
73

1
6

14
6

72
0

5
20

1
73

1
4

75
4

6

72
3

2

75
3

6

W
 A

D
A

M
S

 A
V

E

MEADOWBROOK DR

K
L

E
IN

 D
R

BLUESTEM CT

Z
-F

Y
-1

5-
20

T
h

o
ro

u
g

h
fa

re
 P

la
n

74
25

 W
 A

da
m

s 
A

ve
.

μ
0

10
0

20
0

F
ee

t

5/
7

/2
0

1
5

C
ity

 o
f 

Te
m

p
le

 G
IS

m
ya

rb
e

rr
y

G
IS

 p
ro

d
uc

ts
 a

re
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

os
es

 a
n

d 
m

ay
 n

o
t h

av
e 

b
ee

n 
p

re
p

ar
e

d 
fo

r 
o

r 
b

e 
su

ita
b

le
 fo

r 
le

ga
l, 

e
ng

in
ee

rin
g

, o
r 

su
rv

ey
in

g 
p

ur
p

os
es

.  
T

h
ey

 
do

 n
o

t r
e

pr
e

se
nt

 a
n

 o
n

-t
h

e-
g

ro
u

n
d 

su
rv

e
y 

an
d

 
re

p
re

se
n

t o
nl

y 
th

e
 a

p
pr

o
xi

m
a

te
 r

el
at

iv
e

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s.

E
xp

re
ss

w
a

y
M

a
jo

r 
A

rt
e

ri
a

l
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 M

a
jo

r 
A

rt
e

ri
a

l

M
in

o
r A

rt
e

ria
l

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
in

o
r 

A
rt

e
ri

a
l

C
o

lle
ct

o
r

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 C
o

lle
ct

o
r



80
1

5
74

2
5

5

72
8

5

10
8

71
0

1

72
8

9

71
5

0

73
4

8

73
5

3

73
6

3

74
1

0

19

15
18

10
5

10
6

13
2

11
3

11
7

11
8

10
2

10
510

1

10
9

11
4

13
012

612
2

10
1

11
0

11
4

11
8

73
1

2

11
711

3

73
2

4

12
2

73
2

0

12
5

12
9

12
1

11
0

10
610

2

10
9

12
6

12
1

73
1

6

73
2

5
13

1

71
0

1

72
3

2

73
2

1
13

0

74
6

2

W
 A

D
A

M
S

 A
V

E

MEADOWBROOK DR

BLUESTEM CT

K
L

E
IN

 D
R

Z
-F

Y
-1

5-
20

Tr
a

il
s 

P
la

n
74

25
 W

 A
da

m
s 

A
ve

.

μ
Tr

ai
ls

E
xi

s
ti

n
g

 C
it

y
w

id
e

 S
p

in
e

 T
ra

il

U
n

d
e

r 
D

es
ig

n
/C

o
n

st
ru

c
ti

o
n

 C
it

y
w

id
e

 S
p

in
e

 T
ra

il

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 C
it

y
w

id
e

 S
p

in
e

 T
ra

il

E
xi

s
ti

n
g

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y-

W
id

e 
C

o
n

n
e

ct
o

r 
Tr

a
il

U
n

d
e

r 
D

es
ig

n
/C

o
n

st
ru

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

-W
id

e 
C

o
n

n
e

ct
o

r 
Tr

a
il

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y-

W
id

e 
C

o
n

n
e

ct
o

r 
Tr

a
il

E
xi

s
ti

n
g

 L
o

ca
l C

o
n

n
e

ct
o

r 
Tr

a
il

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 L
o

ca
l C

o
n

n
e

ct
o

r 
Tr

a
il

0
10

0
20

0

F
ee

t

5/
7

/2
0

1
5

C
ity

 o
f 

Te
m

p
le

 G
IS

m
ya

rb
e

rr
y

G
IS

 p
ro

d
uc

ts
 a

re
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

os
es

 a
n

d 
m

ay
 n

o
t h

av
e 

b
ee

n 
p

re
p

ar
e

d 
fo

r 
o

r 
b

e 
su

ita
b

le
 fo

r 
le

ga
l, 

e
ng

in
ee

rin
g

, o
r 

su
rv

ey
in

g 
p

ur
p

os
es

.  
T

h
ey

 
do

 n
o

t r
e

pr
e

se
nt

 a
n

 o
n

-t
h

e-
g

ro
u

n
d 

su
rv

e
y 

an
d

 
re

p
re

se
n

t o
nl

y 
th

e
 a

p
pr

o
xi

m
a

te
 r

el
at

iv
e

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s.



A
G

G
R

S
F

-3

N
S

N
S

M
F

-2

B
lo

ck
:1

B
lo

ck
: 

B
lo

ck
:3

B
lo

ck
:2

B
lo

ck
:9

B
lo

ck
:8

B
lo

ck
:4

1

6

9

8

5

2

4

3

7

17

28

20

31

30

33

27
32

10

19

26

25

24

23

11

22

18

12

14

13

15

29

21

16

34
35

36
37

38
39

40

A
R

E
A

 E
A

R
E

A
 F

A
R

E
A

 H

41

11
18

-B

11
03

-C

25
2

5-
A

W
 A

D
A

M
S

 A
V

E

MEADOWBROOK DR

K
L

E
IN

 D
R

BLUESTEM CT

80
1

5
74

2
5

10
8

71
0

1

5

71
5

0

72
8

5

72
8

9
74

1
0

74
6

2

73
4

8

12
4

73
4

9

73
5

3

73
6

3

14
6

19

15
18

73
7

3
71

5
4

10
5

10
6

13
2

11
3

11
7

13
0

13
1

11
8

10
2

10
5

10
1

10
9

12
1

12
5

11
4

13
012

612
2

10
1

11
0

11
4

11
8

73
1

2

11
711

3

73
2

4
12

2

73
2

0

12
6

12
5

12
9

73
2

1

11
0

73
2

5

10
610

2
10

9

73
1

6

73
1

7

73
1

3

12
9

73
0

9

74
4

5

12
1

71
0

1

70
2

0

73
0

5
73

2
0

73
0

1
72

1
3

73
2

4

75
4

6

72
3

2

75
3

6

74
6

7

Z
-F

Y
-1

5-
20

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n

 M
ap

N
S

 t
o

 P
D

-N
S

74
25

 W
. A

da
m

s 
A

ve
.

¬ «1
G

IS
 p

ro
d

uc
ts

 a
re

 fo
r 

in
fo

rm
a

tio
na

l p
ur

p
os

es
 a

n
d 

m
ay

 n
o

t h
av

e 
b

ee
n 

p
re

p
ar

e
d 

fo
r 

o
r 

b
e 

su
ita

b
le

 fo
r 

le
ga

l, 
e

ng
in

ee
rin

g
, o

r 
su

rv
ey

in
g 

p
ur

p
os

es
.  

T
h

ey
 

do
 n

o
t r

e
pr

e
se

nt
 a

n
 o

n
-t

h
e-

g
ro

u
n

d 
su

rv
e

y 
an

d
 

re
p

re
se

n
t o

nl
y 

th
e

 a
p

pr
o

xi
m

a
te

 r
el

at
iv

e
 lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
bo

un
da

ri
es

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 f

ea
tu

re
s.μ

12
3

4

12
3

4-
A

1

C
as

e

20
0'

 B
u

ffe
r

Z
o

ni
n

g

S
ub

di
vi

si
o

n

O
ut

b
lo

ck
 N

um
b

er

A
dd

re
ss

e
s

B
lo

ck
 N

um
be

r

Lo
t 

N
um

b
er

0
20

0
40

0

F
ee

t

5/
7

/2
0

1
5

C
ity

 o
f 

Te
m

p
le

 G
IS

m
ya

rb
e

rr
y















1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO.      

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-15-20) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE REZONING OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7425 
WEST ADAMS AVENUE FROM NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICE DISTRICT TO 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT-NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICE DISTRICT WITH A 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO ALLOW DRIVE-IN RESTAURANTS, AND A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR THE SALE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES 
FOR ON-PREMISE CONSUMPTION IN ESTABLISHMENTS WHERE 
BETWEEN 50% AND 75% OF THE TOTAL GROSS REVENUE MAY BE 
FROM THE SALE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, the applicant, John Kiella on behalf of Tem-Tex Investments LLC, 
requests rezoning of approximately 4.916 acres, comprised of an approximately 2.037 acre 
northern portion and an approximately 2.879 acre southern portion, from Neighborhood 
Service (NS) district to Planned Development–Neighborhood Service (PD-NS) district and 
requests allowance of “pickup” or drive-in windows on two suites along with two separate 
drive aisles within the Westfield Market development; 

 
Whereas, drive-in restaurant uses are not permitted in the Neighborhood Service 

(NS) district but are permitted in the General Retail (GR) district - the requested Planned 
Development would include the additional use by-right; 

 
Whereas, a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for the sale of alcoholic beverages for 

on-premise consumption in establishments where between 50% and 75% of the total gross 
revenue may be from the sale of alcoholic beverages, is being requested - the applicant is 
requesting that this use be permitted anywhere within the property without the need for 
multiple applications for a separate conditional use permit; 

 
Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after 

due consideration of the conditions, operation and location of property located at 7425 
West Adams Avenue, recommends that the City Council approve the application for this 
CUP for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premise consumption in establishments 
where between 50% and 75% of the total gross revenue may be from the sale of all 
alcoholic beverages; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, after public notice as 

required by law, has at a public hearing, carefully considered all the evidence submitted by 
the applicant concerning the proposed plans for operation of said establishment and has 
heard the comments and evidence presented by all persons supporting or opposing this 
application at said public hearing, and after examining the conditions, operation and the 
location of said establishment, finds that the proposed use of the premises substantially 
complies with the comprehensive plan and the area plan adopted by the City Council. 

 



2 
 

 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning located at 7425 West Adams Avenue 
from Neighborhood Service District (NS) to Planned Development-Neighborhood Service 
District (PD-NS) with a development plan to allow drive-in restaurants, and a Conditional 
Use Permit for the sale of all alcoholic beverages for on-premise consumption in 
establishments where between 50% and 75% of the total gross revenue may be from the 
sale of all alcoholic beverages, as outlined in the map attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and 
made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2: The City Council approves a rezoning, as described in Part 1, subject to the 

following conditions: 
 
1. As listed by UDC Section 5.1, all permitted uses within the Neighborhood 

Service (NS) district are allowed, with the addition of drive-in restaurants, 
which will be allowed only in the northerly 2.037 acre portion of Westfield 
Market; 

2. Drive-in restaurants are prohibited in the southerly 2.879 acre portion of 
Westfield Market but applicant may request approval of a new and separate 
development plan in the future; 

3. Drive-in restaurants are restricted to a drive-aisle and drive-in (pick-up) 
window only; 

4. The Director of Planning is authorized to approve minor modifications to the 
City Council-approved Development Plan, including but not limited to the 
selection of exterior building materials, screening, buffering, landscaping and 
minor modifications to the overall site layout; 

5. Submittal of a Development Plan at the time of Construction Documents, that is 
in substantial compliance to Exhibit A of the Rezoning Ordinance or as 
amended by subsequent action by the Director of Planning  or City Council, is 
required; 

6. Prior to development of the southerly 2.879 acre portion of the Westfield 
Market, a subdivision plat is filed for review with the Planning Department; 

7. Upon residential development or residential rezoning of the undeveloped 
property between the First Baptist Church and Westfield Market, the 
owner/developer of the Westfield Market shall be responsible for the submittal 
of a revised development plan to the Planning Department, confirming 
compliance of the required buffering and screening. 

 
Part 3:  The owners/applicants, their employees, lessees, agents or representatives, 

hereinafter called "permittee” operating an establishment with all alcoholic beverage sales 
for on-premise consumption shall comply with following conditions: 

 
1. The use may be allowed in any of the developed building suites within the 

total 4.916 acre Westfield Market; 
2. The use is subject to compliance with Chapter 4 of the City Code of 

Ordinances related to alcoholic beverages; 



3 
 

 
 
3. The Conditional Use must comply with UDC Section 5.3.15A related to 

alcoholic beverage sales for on-premise consumption and UDC Section 
5.3.15B related to the 50% to 75% range of gross revenue, from all 
alcoholic beverage sales with on-premise consumption; and 

4. As listed in UDC Section 5.1 and upon separate request, all other 
conditional uses identified in the NS district, are subject to review by a 
separate conditional use permit application process. 

 
Part 4: The Director of Planning is hereby directed to make the necessary changes to the City 

Zoning Map accordingly. 
 
Part 5: The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the 

preamble of this ordinance are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative provisions 
hereof. 

 
Part 6: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final judgment or 
decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining 
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been 
enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 

 
Part 7: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in accordance 

with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly so ordained. 
 
Part 8: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance 

was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose 
of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 2nd day of 

July, 2015.  
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of July, 2015. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 




